July 17, 2015
To:

Columbia Association Board of Directors
Advisory Committee Chairpersons
Village Board Chairs
Village Managers
Members of the Press
CA Management

From:

Jeanne N. Ketley, Board Chairperson

The Columbia Association Board of Directors Meeting will be held on Thursday,
July 23, 2015 at 7:30 p.m. at the Columbia Association Building, 10221 Wincopin Circle,
Columbia, MD 21044.
AGENDA
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.

10.
11.

Call to Order (Announce Directors/Staff in Attendance)
Announcement of Closed/Special Meetings Held/To Be Held
Approval of Agenda
Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest
Resident Speakout
July 9, 2015
Approval of Minutes
Chairperson’s Remarks
President’s Report – See written report – Follow-Up Questions from the BOD
Committee Chairs’ Remarks
(a) Board Operations Committee
(b) External Relations Committee
(c) Planning and Strategy Committee
(d) Strategic Implementation Committee
(e) Audit Committee
(f) CA Representatives to the Inner Arbor Trust Board of Directors
Special Topics and Presentations
(a) Update on the Headquarters Office Move
Committee Agendas
(a) Strategic Implementation Committee
1. Discussion
(a) Update on the Long-Term Lake Management Plan and
Funding Discussion for Wilde Lake
(b) Swim Center Architectural/Engineering Capital Funding
Request
(c)
Committee Tracking Form

1 min.
1 min.
1 min.
1 min.
2 min.
3 min.
10 min.
12 min.

15 min.

40 min.

(b)

12.

13.

14.

15.
16.
17.

External Relations Committee
1. Discussion
(a) Site Development Plan for Royal Farms on Snowden River
Parkway
(b) Update on Noise at Merriweather Post Pavilion
(c)
Update on Stakeholders Dinners
(d) Committee Tracking Form
Recommendations for Board Action
(a) Consent Agenda - None
(b) Recommendations for Action
1. Approval of the Annual Charge Rate for the FY 17 and Conditional
FY 18 Budgets
2. Consider Raising the Annual Charge Cap for the FY 17 and
Conditional FY 18 Budgets from 2.5% up to 5%
3. Approval of the Proposed FY 17 and Conditional FY 18 Capital
and Operating Budget Parameters
Reports
(a) FY 2015 Financial Statements and Independent Auditors’ Report –
Columbia Association, Inc.
(b) FY 2015 Financial Statements and Independent Auditors’ Report –
Incentive Savings Plan and Trust
Tracking Forms
(a) Tracking Form for Board Requests
(b) Tracking Form for Resident Requests
Talking Points
Adjournment – No Later than 11:00 p.m. (Projected Ending Time:
Approximately 10:30 p.m.)
Closed Meeting of the Board of Directors follows adjournment of the
open BOD meeting

45 min.

15 min.

10 min.

5 min.

2 min.

Next Board Meeting:
Thursday, September 10, 2015

At CA’s New Headquarters Building
6310 Hillside Court, Columbia, MD 21046
ARRANGEMENTS FOR AN INTERPRETER FOR THE HEARING IMPAIRED CAN BE MADE BY
CALLING 410-715-3111 AT LEAST THREE DAYS IN ADVANCE OF THE MEETING.

CA Mission Statement
Working every day in hundreds of ways to make Columbia an even better place to live, work, and
play.
CA Vision Statement
Making Columbia the community of choice today and for generations to come.
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DRAFT
Minutes of the
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Held: July 9, 2015
To be approved: July 23, 2015
A meeting of the Columbia Association Board of Directors was held on Thursday, July 9, 2015, at the
Columbia Association Building. Present were Chairwoman Jeanne Ketley and members Dick Boulton, Alan
Klein, Nancy McCord, Gregg Schwind (via phone), and Andy Stack. Members Reg Avery, Brian Dunn, Janet
Evans and Chao Wu were absent. Also present were CA President/CEO Milton Matthews, Chief Staff
Liaisons Susan Krabbe and Norma Heim, Governance Chief of Staff Jane Dembner, and General Counsel
Sheri Fanaroff .
1. Call to Order: The Board of Directors Meeting was called to order at 7:29 p.m. by the Chair, Jeanne
Ketley.
2. Announcement of Closed/Special Meetings Held/To Be Held: none

19
20
21

3. Approval of Agenda:
Action: Mr. Stack moved that the agenda be approved as presented. Ms. McCord seconded the motion
which passed unanimously. Vote: 6-0-0.
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4. Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest: none

23
24
25

5. Resident Speakout:
(a) Joel Hurewitz, Harpers Choice, spoke about the process of electing CA’s Board chair and vice chair.
(written testimony submitted).

26
27
28
29
30

6. Approval of Minutes: June 25, 2015
Action: Mr. Stack moved that the minutes of June 25, 2015 be accepted. Ms. McCord seconded the
motion, which passed unanimously.

31
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40

8. President’s Remarks: None
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10. Recommendations for Board Action
(a) Consent Agenda -- none
(b) Recommendations for Board Action
1. Approval of the Audit Committee Charter
Ms. Fanaroff and Internal Audit Director Jackie Tuma explained proposed changes to the Audit
Committee’s charter and, at Ms. Ketley’s request, explained the rationale for including

7. Chairperson’s Remarks: None.

9. Committee Chairs’ Remarks
(a) Board Operations Committee: none
(b) External Relations Committee: none
(c) Planning and Strategy Committee: none
(d) Strategic Implementation Committee: none
(e) CA Representatives to the Inner Arbor Trust Board of Directors: Mr. Schwind said the IAT board will
meet next week. Mr. Boulton asked that Board members let him know what questions they have for
the IAT board.

47
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2. Approval of the Office of Internal Audit Mission Statement and Charter
Action: The Board unanimously approved the Audit Committee’s recommendation to approve the
amended mission statement and charter of the Office of Internal Audit.

54
55
56
57

3. Approval of the Process for Electing the Board Chair and Vice Chair.
After discussion, the Board asked CA staff to reword the recommendation regarding election of
Board chair and vice chair to clarify how confidentiality of Board members’ votes will be ensured.
Staff will then send the revised wording to the BOC for consideration.
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oversight for the ethics program to the duties of the Audit Committee.
Action: The Board unanimously approved the Audit Committee’s recommendation to approve the
charter, as amended.

11. Special topics and Presentations
(a) Financial Briefing for the Board of Directors
Ms. Krabbe gave an overview of CA’s finances, budget and risk management strategies and
encouraged board members to attend the Audit Committee meeting on July 22 to discuss the financials
in more detail.
12. Committee Agendas
(a) Planning and Strategy Committee
1. Discussion
(a) Annual Charge Rate and Cap for the FY 17 and Conditional FY 18 Budgets (1st Reading)
(b) Proposed FY 17 and Conditional FY 18 Capital and Operating Budget Parameters (1st Reading)
Action: Ms. McCord moved that the PSC recommend that the Board accept staff’s
recommendation that budget parameters for capital budgets be $21 million for FY 17
and $17 million for FY 18, and that the annual charge rate be kept at $0.68. Mr. Stack
seconded the motion, which passed. Vote: 2-0-0.
Action: Ms. McCord moved that the PSC recommend that the Board consider raising the cap
on annual assessed valuation increases to as much as 5 percent for the FY 17 budget.
Mr. Stack seconded the motion, which passed. Vote: 2-0-0.
(c) Committee Tracking form
13. Tracking Forms
(a) Tracking Form for Board Requests: no additions
(b) Tracking Form for Resident Requests: no additions.
14. Talking Points: Recording Secretary Valerie Montague read the Talking Points.
15. Adjournment: The meeting was adjourned at 9:38 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,
Valerie Montague
Recording Secretary

JULY 2015
Message from the Office of the President/CEO
“We’re moving.” Years of planning and work associated with the relocation of CA headquarters to a
new site have culminated in these words. Yet, the positive aspects of the new location are beginning to
pale in the realization that, in six weeks, CA is vacating the building which has borne its name and been
its headquarters since 1992. A certain nostalgia is setting in as we realize the list of “former CA
headquarters sites” will soon include Wincopin Circle.
Columbia Association opened its first office in 1966 in the “Bungalow” in Wilde Lake. There is some
uncertainty as to which building the name refers. It was probably one of the historic buildings in Wilde
Lake since no new buildings existed in 1966.
In 1968, CA moved its office to 200 Wilde Lake Center where it occupied space above the shops. CA
stayed there until 1971 when it moved to the Century Plaza building at the intersection of Governor
Warfield and Little Patuxent Parkways.
In 1975, financial concerns caused CA to move to the Banneker Building located behind the firehouse.
This space was already occupied by CA Open Space and transportation services (ColumBUS and CallA-Ride) and was known as the Public Works Garage or PWG for short. PWG was considered an
unrefined appellation for a headquarters location, so the space was nicknamed the more elegant “Le
Garage.”
In 1984, CA moved to One Knoll North, part of the property of the Columbia Medical Plan. In 1988, it
moved to the Lakeview Building on Broken Land Parkway.
CA relocated to its present site on Wincopin Circle in 1992. The building was previously known as the
Teacher’s Building and had housed the Ryland Group. When Ryland left and Columbia Association
moved in, the building was renamed the Columbia Association Building.
The Columbia Association Building is the only building which housed each of CA’s presidents and
acting/interim presidents from CA’s inception through summer 2015: Padraic M. Kennedy; Deborah O.
McCarty; Charles D. Rhodehamel (acting president); Maggie J. Brown; Phillip L. Nelson; Susan M.
Krabbe (interim president); and Milton W. Matthews. It has been home to organizations such as the
Columbia Forum, Columbia Foundation, Columbia Festival of the Arts, Columbia Birthday, Columbia
Volunteer Corps, Marriner Marketing, and Howard Hughes Corporation; and served as a welcome
center after the Rouse Company’s Welcome Center closed in 1989.
It is a singular place filled with memories. In time, its flaws will be recalled with a certain humor, its good
times with great relish, and its sad times with softness to ease the pain. It will be remembered as a
Grande Dame of CA’s headquarters buildings and it will be missed.

Sport and Fitness
Aquatics
Columbia Neighborhood Swim League (CNSL)
The Columbia Neighborhood Swim League is now halfway through the 2015 season. Teams took part
in two of the local Howard County Independence Day Parades, showcasing team floats (in many cases
designed by swimmers), banners and hundreds of cheering swimmers whose spirits were far brighter
than the gloomy rainy morning experienced on the Fourth of July.
The league is preparing for the closing meets of the season, with two remaining dual meets. Teams are
also gearing up toward end of season social events including 14 individual team charity events. In
many cases, these events are held overnight with swimmers encouraged to swim a high number of laps
to raise money toward designated charities, including the Howard County Food Bank.
The league has had a staff of 48 coaches this summer who have all showed tremendous commitment
to their teams and communities. The coaches have each put forth hours of hard work at practices and
team functions, providing a fundamental and enjoyable summer program to kids ranging in age from 3
to 19. The All City Championship Meet, set to take place on July 25 at the Phelps Luck Pool, will wrap
up the 2015 CNSL season.
Clippers
The Clippers team participated in the Independence Day meet at University of Maryland, Baltimore
County, on June 27 and 28. The 63 swimmers who attended came away from the stormy weekend with
225 new personal best times. Five swimmers achieved new time standards. As of this meet, the team
has achieved 6689 personal best times over the season.
As of July 6, 124 swimmers have registered to try out for the 2015-2016 season. Returning registrations
are currently ongoing and it is anticipated that there will be approximately 45 open spots for next
season.
Columbia Gym
The annual shutdown began on June 1 and was completed by June 12, allowing the club to open two
days early; this was well received by members. A great deal of work was completed during the
shutdown including revitalizing the main fitness area, resurfacing the floors in the adult arena and all
studios, upgrading fitness equipment and TV’s, replacing the wall pads in both arenas, painting,
scrubbing, carpeting, pool, sauna and locker rooms maintenance and much more.
With reopening, new Personal Training programs and initiatives have been launched, summer camps
and swim lessons have commenced, exciting new group fitness classes are being offered and birthday
party offerings have been expanded. The Martial Arts Department hosted an open house event on May
9, has been presenting at community events and is adding a new program called Fit Defense. Overall
club usage continues to be high.
Columbia Ice Rink
The Ice Rink is shut down for the summer from June 7 to August 9. A small team is working to perform
annual deep cleaning tasks and maintenance of rental skates and hockey equipment. Two small capital
projects will take place this July: replacing the battery on the Zamboni and replacing the rubber floor in
the Birthday Party room.
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Fitness - Wellness
Community Health
The spring session of Optimal Health concluded with positive results in weight loss, inches lost, BMI
improvements, and numerous testimonials on how participants are more active, eat better, and have a
better understanding on how to make healthy changes to their daily lives.
The Community Health team is working with leaders in the Obstetrics/Gynecology practices of Howard
County General Hospital to develop a new Optimal Health program “My Baby & Me”; a 12 week
program for prenatal through postnatal women who want to improve their health. The program includes
specialized group exercise classes, wellness coaching with a certified coach, and nutrition education
with a Registered Dietitian. A free pilot session will begin in September and registration begins July 15.
For more information, contact Shawni Paraska, Community Health Director, 410-715-3128 or
shawni.paraska@columbiaassociation.org.
CA Team Members are invited to participate in Vitality - a free online based program to help with
mental and physical health. Vitality Champs have volunteered to help motivate and inform team
members of the benefits and rewards of the program.
Personal Training
The Personal Training team is now offering complementary 15 minute classes, at 15 minutes past the
hour, when a personal trainer is available. This initiative is called “15 on the 15”. The purpose is to
educate and motivate members and increase awareness of the Personal Training Department within
the fitness clubs.
The Personal Training Department at the Athletic Club has launched monthly sales training for trainers,
by trainers. Training will be offered monthly at the Athletic Club and quarterly at all team meetings. It is
open to all trainers in the department.
At the request of the Personal Training staff, the Department has begun a partnership with Chesapeake
Physical & Aquatic Therapy. This will include a monthly Q & A session to help educate CA trainers on
how to better serve clients that are currently undergoing physical therapy or have recently completed
physical therapy and are considering personal training. The focus is not only to educate our trainers but
also to provide the safest, post-rehabilitation experience for clients.
The Personal Training Department has begun an initiative with team members at CA Headquarters, led
by Denise Jenkins, Personal Trainer, called "Leave Your Desk and Move!”. The purpose of the initiative
is to create wellness opportunities and to improve health across the whole CA team.
Tennis
The new Junior Team Tennis program began on June 29. This is a team-based junior competition
involving boys and girls as part of a team. Age levels include 10s, 12s, 14s and 18s. Juniors play
singles and doubles matches against other teams and they attend one weekly practice and have one
weekly match. 48 juniors are registered and competing. CA Tennis summer junior and adult programs
began on June 22 and June 26 respectively.
USTA league play continues to thrive at all four CA tennis clubs and Cardio Tennis continues to be very
popular.
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The Tennis Department hosted its first ever United States Tennis Association (USTA) sanctioned tennis
tournament for Boys and Girls, ages 12 and 14, on June 26 to 28 at the Columbia Athletic Club. We
had 34 participants from all over Maryland.
The Tennis Department also hosted its first ever USTA 10-and-under tennis coaches workshop on
June 28 at the Columbia Athletic Club. Forty-four coaches from all over Maryland attended, including
14 CA coaches.
On June 5, CA provided courts at Wilde Lake Tennis Club for the University of Maryland’s Shock
Trauma Charity Event. Approximately 30 players participated in the event.
The Tennis Department hosted an Adult Social at Wilde Lake Tennis Club on June 20, with 43
participants.
SportsPark and SkatePark
The capital project to replace both bridges on the miniature golf course was completed successfully.
The bridges had not been replaced since the opening of the SportsPark in 1998.
The SportsPark hosted Earth Resources Technology’s corporate outing and hosted a fundraiser for the
University of Maryland, Women's Basketball Team. Celebrity Brenda Frese made an appearance for
the fundraiser.

Planning & Community Affairs
Development Monitoring
Staff from the Office of Planning and Community Affairs continued to monitor development in and
around Columbia. The updated the Development Tracker, which tracks development proposals and
meetings for sites in and close by to Columbia is available on-line at http://bit.ly/DevelopmentTracker.
This is updated at least monthly. Planning staff also attended various public meetings related to
planning and development including the second and third meetings of Howard County’s Adequate
Public Facilities Ordinance Task Force and the funding roundtable discussion on the existing
pedestrian bridge over Route 29.
Bicycle and Pedestrian Counts
In May, CA counted users on the pathway system at key pathway locations. The summary report of
counts and findings, including comparisons to last year’s counts, is now available at
bit.ly/pathwaycount2015. The results show an increase in pathway usage.

Environmental Sustainability
CA continues to establish itself as a community leader in sustainable energy. The two megawatt solar
installation at Nixon Farm which will provide 25 percent of CA’s power is coming online this month. CA
also has several lighting retrofit projects underway at Kahler Hall and the RV Park and preparations for
our combined heat and power (CHP) generator at the Supreme Sports Club are continuing. In addition
to CA’s internal efforts to utilize renewable energy, we are launching a community-wide solar
cooperative program in August to assist residents with installing solar on their homes.
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CA and the River Hill Village Watershed Committee in cooperation with Middle Patuxent Environmental
Area staff conducted joint Weed Warrior training June 14th and 20th. A total of 14 Volunteer were
certified as Weed Warriors for the MPEA and 8 participated in the additional field training and were
certified as Weed Warrior Leaders for CA.
At the request of the Wilde Lake Village, staff conducted a tour of bioretention facilities for residents
and Village Board members. Residents along Reedy Brook, Snowy Reach and Cloud Burst have been
experiencing stormwater runoff problems. One of the solutions is the construction of a bioretention
facility next to the tot-lot in Open Space between the three streets. Residents wanted to see similar
projects that CA has already built. 10 residents and Village Board members looked at three
bioretention facilities in Owen Brown adjacent to tot lots or day care facilities built by CA.
The rain garden cost share program started up again and installed 13 new rain gardens in June
bringing the total to 195 gardens installed by CA’s cost share program.

Community Services
Columbia Art Center participated in ARTreach, a free community arts festival held on June 20 in Long
Reach Village in conjunction with the Howard County Arts Council, Howard County Government,
Columbia Festival of the Arts, and Long Reach Community Association. ARTreach provided free family
art activities including face-painting, pinata making, and ceramics wheel-throwing. Many artists gave
demonstrations in fused glass, bead-making, blacksmithing, wood carving, wood turning, and more. A
variety of free music and dance performances went on throughout the day on two different
stages. More than 1000 people attended ARTreach, and prior to the event nearly 100 community
members worked to create a mosaic mural that was unveiled and is now permanently displayed on the
brick wall near the former Safeway space. The festival ceremony was held at noon with several local
politicians speaking. Milton W. Matthews, president/CEO of Columbia Association and Andrew Stack,
vice chair, Columbia Association Board of Directors were present for the event.
Camp Make A Difference (CMAD) had a positive first week. Fifteen campers participated in service
projects at the senior center, Howard County Conservancy, Days End Farm Horse Rescue, and
Community Action Council of Howard County’s Community Garden where the campers helped pick 64
pounds of vegetables for the food bank. A session on Hands Only CPR was added on Wednesday
afternoons and Success in Style, along with CA’s Watershed Group, joined CMAD as partners this
year. Also this year, CA scholarship winners were invited to speak to the campers on opening day to
illustrate that students can make a difference.
Columbia Archives provided images for an upcoming book titled "A Nice Place to Visit: Tourism and
Urban Revitalization in the Postward Rustbelt", by Aaron Cowan to be published by Temple University
Press. For the chapter on Baltimore we were able to provide images of James Rouse and Mayor
William Donald Schaeffer at the Harborplace opening.

Communications and Marketing
PR and Media Pickup
Three press releases were sent between June 12 and July 8. High-profile coverage during that period
included an article in the Columbia Flier about the CA Board's ethics discussions; a Columbia Flier
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article and video about Juan Dixon's basketball camp at Supreme Sports Club; and an appearance by
a CA staffer on Maryland Public Television's "Direct Connection" to discuss how we keep chloramine
levels down in our pools.
Publications
CA Monthly’s July theme is CA Partnerships. The 2015 At a Glance/CA Annual Report was recently
mailed with the annual charge form in July. The Fall Activities Guide is in production.
Events
The Lakefront Summer Festival is in full swing with 16 events that have already taken place. The
Lakefront Lunchtime Concert Series is also underway.
Marketing/Promotions
Print Ads: Ads in the Columbia Flier and Howard County Times for the month of June focused on
Haven on the Lake and featured Outdoor Yoga, Daily Use, Haven Classes and Spa Services. A
Fairway Hills ad was also featured on the back page on June 11. CA sponsored the June 4 Laurel
Leader and June 11 Columbia Flier “Congratulations to the 2015 Graduates” special section. The Youth
and Teen Center is shown on CA’s Mall in Columbia Directory Display ad for June, followed by Tennis
in July. Haven on the Lake is featured in a large ad on buses in Montgomery County throughout the
month of July. The new Korean translating services were advertised in the July 3 and July 11 Korea
Times newspapers. The School Age Services Job Fair on July 7 was promoted in the Pennysaver and
Columbia Flier.
Digital Broadcast: A general CA digital ad continues to run on Xfinity.com through Comcast. A general
golf digital ad continues to run on ComcastSportsNet.com. A combination of radio and streaming online
video ads ran on ESPN980 and ESPN980.com for golf during the week of the US Open Championship.
Additionally, our golf TV commercial currently playing on the Golf Channel was also featured on Fox
Sports, ESPN and ESPN2 during their coverage of the U.S. Open Championship.
Email Broadcast: Email broadcasts for both Fairway Hills and Hobbit’s Glen were sent via CBS
Baltimore and CBS DC in late June/early July.
Membership
There were 680 new memberships (59 from Haven) for a total of $573,760.
Broadcast Media
July 2015 Columbia Matters Radio included Howard County Library Partnerships – Christie Lassen;
Howard County Partnerships – Jane Dembner; CA School Age Services Department – Bunny
Edgerton; Howard County Arts Council and Columbia Art Center Partnership – ArtReach; Lakefront
Wed. Lunchtime Concert Series, Summer Lakefront Festival.
July 2015 Columbia Matters TV included Columbia Sports Park, Lakefront Summer Festival, Lakefront
Wed. Lunchtime Concert Series, Haven on the Lake Mind Body Classes, Invite to CA's Lakefront
Summer Festival, Skin Cancer Prevention with Dr. Harry Oken (CA’s Medical Advisory Board Director).
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Monthly Updates
Inner Arbor Plan and Organization
The annual meeting of the Inner Arbor Trust, Inc. Board of Directors is scheduled for Wednesday,
July 15, 2015.
Haven on the Lake
We welcome Arielle Feinberg to the Department of Sport & Fitness as the new General Manager for
Haven on the Lake. Arielle brings 10+ years in the spa and fitness industry to Haven on the Lake, and
we look forward to her joining us in early August.
Dorsey Hall Meeting Room
Progress continues on the Dorsey Hall Meeting Room which is now fully framed and the work area
turned back over to pool uses. Work on the Meeting Room will be completed prior to the end of the
summer and the Meeting Room will reopen in time for the fall school programs.
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CA’s New
Headquarters
Status as of
July 15, 2015

The Project Team as
of July 15, 2015
Project lead – Joy Wanner, DTZ
First Potomac project lead – Charles Smiroldo
Design lead – Madeline Mirecki (Arium)
CA team participants to date: Cindy Brown, Diane
Cardenas, Scott Coleman, Sterling Davis, Joe
Gardenghi, Norma Heim, Will Hume, Susan Krabbe,
Claudia Lafuse, Janet Loughran, Dennis Mattey,
Michelle Miller, Pat O’Malley, Keithan Samuels,
Gladys Taylor-Brown, Chuck Thompson, Debbie
Thompson, Mary Weeks, Andrea Wilmoth

Activities in Progress

CLEARING OUT
Construction – First Potomac
Security
Audio-visual
IT server room and cabling

Activities in Progress
(continued)
Change management assistance
Move orientation meeting – 7/27
Furniture selection and orders
Layout of storage areas

Timeline
Access on July 31
Move planned for weekend of
August 22
Clean up current spaces by
August 31

Show and Tell
Finishes
Floor plan
Tours
Orientation

Lobby

Entrance

CMSC

Board Room

Archives Exhibit

C. & M. Area

Hallway

nd
2 Floor Conference
Room

Break Room

IT Area

Comm. Services &
S. & F. Admin.

Standard Office

Lake Sediment Management
Plans – Wilde Lake, Lake
Kittamaqundi and Lake Elkhorn

Wilde Lake

Lake Kittamaqundi

Status Update – July 23, 2015
Consultants & Designers, Inc.
“Integrating Engineering and Environment”
7455 New Ridge Road, Suite T
Hanover, Maryland 21076

Phone: (410) 694-9401
Fax: (410) 694-9405

Lake Elkhorn

Presentation Overview


Lake Sediment Management Plans – November 2013

•
•


Background
Highlights

Plan Implementation

•
•

Work completed
Scheduled work – FY 2016

Background


CA completed major lake restorations in 2013 – all 3 lakes

•
•
•
•

Dredged and removed 121,000 CY of sediment
Restored and improved lake functions
Invested approximately $14 million in 5-year period
Significant regulatory oversight and high citizen interest

Sediment Management Plan


CA hired BayLand in 2013 to develop 20-year
management plans for each lake

•
•

Protect recent lake restoration investments
Monitor and manage sedimentation

Proactively not reactively

Environmentally sound and prudent manner

Community friendly

Minimal disruption to recreation

Cost efficient

Plan Development







Reviewed historic data
Evaluated sedimentation rates and distribution
Determined when and where to dredge
Assessed where to place the material
Identified key tasks for the management plans
Developed action plan, schedule and budget for each
lake

Sedimentation Rates


2013 findings

•
•

Short-term sedimentation rates – highly variable

1,000 – 11,000 CY/year
Long-term sedimentation rates – consistent

1,700 – 2,000 CY/year

1,700 CY/year – Wilde Lake

1,800 CY/year – Lake Kittamaqundi

2,000 CY/year – Lake Elkhorn

Sediment Distribution
Unmanaged  Widespread Distribution

1966-2012 Sediment Distribution - Wilde Lake

When and Where to Dredge


2013 findings – conduct smaller strategic dredging
projects

•

•
•
•

•

Capture and remove deposition at lake headwaters

Greatly reduces lake-wide sedimentation

Environmental, aesthetic and recreational benefits
Allows much smaller areas and volumes to be dredged
Easier to permit – less impacts
Cost competitive

Can be mechanically dredged

Reduces mobilization costs
Requires more frequent dredging

Shorter/less costly projects

When and Where to Dredge




Conduct smaller strategic dredging projects at lake
headwaters and major stormwater outfalls
Dredging frequency

•
•
•

Wilde Lake

Wilde Lake – every 4 years
Lake Kittamaqundi – every 4 years
Lake Elkhorn – every 6 years
Lake Kittamaqundi

Lake Elkhorn

Where to Place the Material


2013 findings – Develop a Columbia Association
material placement site

•
•

•
•

Must be sited locally to reduce material transport costs
CA owned/leased and operated

Guarantees availability

No tipping fees

Increases number of dredging bidders

Allows placement of wet material
Estimated savings - $2.3 to $3.0 million for the 20-year
sediment management plan period
Especially effective when combined with smaller
dredging projects

Lake Sediment
Management Plans


Key tasks

•
•
•
•
•

Surveys and monitoring
Dredging permitting, design
and construction
Dredged material placement
site development
Agency coordination
Regular updates

Lake Sediment
Management Plans


Key tasks, schedule and action plan for each lake

Lake Sediment
Management Plans




Developed budget for each task
Defines annual funding requirements
Provides 20-year budget for each lake

•
•
•
•

Wilde Lake
Lake Kittamaqundi
Lake Elkhorn
Total

$
$
$
$

4.3 million *
2.4 million
2.8 million
9.5 million

* Includes cost for development of material placement site to be used for all lakes

Plan Implementation –
Status Update






CA approved the Lake Sediment Management Plans
(LSMPs) – November 2013
BayLand was competitively hired to implement plans –
September 2014
Work completed – Year 1

•
•
•
•
•

Installed lake benchmarks and guages
Conducted bathymetric surveys
Updated sedimentation rates – within
expected ranges
Obtained perpetual dredging permits
for Wilde Lake and Lake Kittamaqundi
Evaluated and selected a material
placement site

14 Candidate Placement Sites

Selected Placement Site

Murray Hill Road Placement Site
Turn off topo and make labels 2xs bigger

Murray Hill Road
Site Attributes









CA owned
33 ± ac. parcel, zoned New Town – open space
5 ac. area identified for DMP site
Close proximity to lakes
Good transportation access to major highways
Wide (300+ feet) forested buffers to adjacent residents
No impacts to existing trail system
Used successfully for small pond dredging over the past
10 years

Murray Hill Road Placement
Site Concept












Mechanical dredging only – soil is wet
but not slurry
Clear and level site prior to dredging
Place dredged material in thin layers
(3’) to promote drying
Vegetatively stabilize after each use
Frequency of use – every 2-4 years
Duration of dredging – 3-4 months each
use
Continue to use for small pond dredging
Total storage is 75,000 ± CY – over 15
years dredging capacity

Murray Hill Road Placement
Site Permitting



Federal and State permits – none required
Met with Howard County Planning and Zoning

•
•
•

No objections to site selection
Site Development Plan is not required (waiver)
Soil Conservation District approval needed

LSMP Scheduled
Tasks – FY 2016


Proceed with implementation of Year 2 LSMPs

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

CA board / public meeting
Material placement site design
Wilde Lake forebay dredging design
Wilde Lake living shoreline reclamation design
Lake Kittamaqundi forebay dredging design
Lake Elkhorn permitting
Bathymetric surveys
SWM ponds inventory and assessment
Update sediment management plans

Question and Answer
Session

To:

Members of the Strategic Implementation Committee

From:

Dennis Mattey, Director, Open Space and Facility Services Department

Cc:

CA Board of Directors
Milton Matthews, President/CEO
Susan Krabbe, Vice President/CFO
Patrick O’Malley, Director of Purchasing

Subject:

Swim Center Architectural/Engineering (A/E) Capital Funding Request

Date:

July 15, 2015

The purpose of this memorandum is to request the Board’s approval to award the Swim Center
architectural and engineering contract. In accordance with the Purchasing Policy and
Procedures, Board approval is required when less than three bids are received and the price
exceeds $250,000.00. Also, capital funding for the architectural and engineering design and
subsequent preconstruction services is requested.
Background:
On June 3, 2015 a Request for Proposals (RFP) was issued to 78 firms seeking proposals from
qualified architectural/engineering (A/E) firms experienced in the design of athletic facilities, in
particular, experience related to aquatics. On June 11, 2015 a pre-proposal conference was
attended by 7 interested firms. On July 8, two responses were received. The responses are
from two reputable and qualified firms with which CA is familiar. Both are capable of performing
the required services. Fee proposals received from both are reasonable and within an
acceptable range.
.
Inquiries were made to several firms asking why they chose not to respond. Among the reasons
offered were: lacked swim center experience; aquatics was not their “strong suit;” scope
required numerous sub-consultants; scope was too large; preferred to offer a cost plus fee;
lacked experience working with a construction manager at risk; or, lacked capability or capacity.
Recommendation:
In order to move forward with the necessary Swim Center renovations, CA Board approval is
requested to proceed with the architectural and engineering contract award and also to approve
funding for pre-construction management services. When the previous CA Board approved the
replacement of SplashDown and the other work on the Swim Center, they did not approve any
funding. The total capital funding request in the amount of $500,000 will provide funding for both
architectural and engineering services (approximately $400,000) and preconstruction services

(approximately $100,000). Time is of the essence to address the repairs and renovations and
improvements as outlined in the Swim Center Facility Assessment Survey. A procurement to
hire the construction manager to provide construction management services is currently out for
bid and due back to CA on July 31, 2015. Re-soliciting the A/E services in an attempt to obtain
additional responses is not recommended due to the time constraints. Additionally, a resolicitation would require revisions to the RFP and additional responses could not be
guaranteed.
The funding for this project could be sourced from two open indoor pool capital projects (Z1115-2, $250,000 and Z11-16-3 $150,000 combined with a new FY16 capital request for $100,000
totaling $500,000. Since the Swim Center represents 11 of CA’s 23 indoor pool lanes, keeping
them open and accessible is critical to CA serving the aquatics community. Those two capital
projects were approved by previous Boards prior to the completion of the Swim Center Facility
Assessment Survey and the decision to replace SplashDown in kind. The Swim Center Facility
Assessment Survey presents a more pressing need than the new indoor pool and funding for
work associated with a new indoor pool could be a part of the budget process if it becomes a
greater board priority moving forward.
Therefore, staff recommends that the Board approve the following: “re-purpose open and
approved capital projects Z11-15-2 (possible indoor Pool A & E) and Z11-16-3 (Indoor Pool
Architectural and Engineering) to provide architectural, engineering and construction
management services associated with repairs and renovations to the Swim Center.” Staff further
recommends that the Board approve increasing the FY16 capital budget by $100,000 to provide
architectural and engineering services associated with repairs and renovations to the Swim
Center.
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July 16, 2015

To:

Members of the External Relations Committee (ERC)
Milton W. Matthews, President/CEO

From:

Jane Dembner, AICP, Director of Planning and Community Affairs

cc:

Columbia Association Board of Directors
Norma Heim, ERC Committee Staff Liaison

Subject:

Royal Farms Site Development Plan

Background
At the June 25, 2015 Columbia Association Board of Directors meeting, the External Relations
Committee (ERC) led a discussion about the pending gas station development proposal at the
intersection of Snowden River Parkway and Minstrel Way. Following the ERC discussion,
Board members, in a straw vote, indicated their opposition to the Royal Farm’s Site Development
Plan (SDP) petition and asked staff to propose ways to make the Board’s opposition known to
Howard County decision makers. For petitions to develop Columbia property zoned New Town
(other than in lands in Downtown Columbia and the village centers), the Howard County Code
stipulates that the Planning Board has decision-making authority for Comprehensive Sketch
Plans, Final Development Plans and Site Development Plans. The ultimate decision makers on
this case are the members of the Howard County Planning Board.
This memo responds to the CA Board’s request to propose ways to make the Board’s opposition
to the Royal Farms SDP known to the Planning Board and Howard County staff, with the latter
providing technical support to the Planning Board.
Note: For a copy of the SDP and the Howard County Department of Planning and Zoning (DPZ)
Technical Staff Report, please refer to our memo to the ERC dated June 16, 2015, which is part
of the Board’s back-up materials for June 25, 2015 and is stored on the Board meetings
webpage.
Options
Direct Consultation. Columbia Association’s planning staff has undertaken additional review and
investigation of the Site Development Plan to ensure that our review of the case and previous
approvals were comprehensive. We have also talked with the Department of Planning and
Development staff coordinator for the subject SDP to gain a better understanding of the
documents, previous approvals and the applicable zoning regulations.
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We also corresponded with staff members from the Howard County Office of Transportation and
the Department of Public Works (DPW) to understand the planned Snowden River Parkway
roadway investments along this section of the road. These investments include a travel lane in
each direction and a pathway/sidewalk and buffer area between the pathway and travel lanes.
County staff confirmed that these improvements can be accommodated along the area of the
subject site.
Following those conversations, we asked for an in-person meeting with DPZ and DPW staff and
management related to the proposed project, the road plans and the Snowden River Parkway
access approval recommendations. That meeting is scheduled for Monday, July 20th, after the date
of this memo, but prior to the July 23 Board meeting. At the July 20th meeting, CA planning staff
will outline the various concerns raised by Board members and their opposition to the gas station
proposal.
The applicant has requested approval of an entrance along Snowden River Parkway rather than
the lower level Minstrel Way. This request must be approved by the Planning Board. We are
interested to better understand why Howard County DPW agreed with the request for Snowden
River Parkway access and why it is that, as stated in the County’s staff report on the Waiver
Petition, “Neither the Department of Public Works nor the DPZ, Development Engineering
Division objected to approval of this waiver.”
Planning Board Testimony. When the case comes before the Planning Board for their
consideration and decision, the CA Board could submit testimony opposing the case. Testimony
before the Planning Board may be done in person, via email or by mail. Written testimony must
be received by the Planning Board no later than the day of the meeting. The Planning Board
typically meets on the first and third Thursdays of the month at the George Howard Building at
7pm. Agendas and meeting dates are posted on this webpage:
http://www.howardcountymd.gov/planning_board.htm
Recommendation/Next Steps
Based on what the CA planning staff reports from the July 20th meeting with Howard County
staff, the Board of Directors may decide they would like to prepare testimony for the Planning
Board.
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Date:

June 18, 2015

To:

Members of the External Relations Committee (ERC)
Milton W. Matthews, President/CEO

From:

Scott Templin, Community Planner

CC:

Columbia Association Board of Directors
Sheri Fanaroff, General Counsel
Jane Dembner, Director of Planning and Community Affairs
Norma Heim, ERC Committee Staff Liaison

Subject:

Noise Ordinances and Regulations

This memo responds to a CA Board request regarding laws governing noise levels in Howard
County. I previously provided to the Board a memo dated September 23, 2014 regarding the
Howard County Noise Ordinance, a copy of which is attached to this memo. This memo
provides a brief update to that memo, and as requested by the board, also provides information
as to whether there are federal regulations issued by OSHA or the EPA that also may govern
noise levels at Merriweather Post Pavilion (hereinafter, “MPP”).
1. Update on Howard County and State of Maryland Noise Ordinances
The Howard County and State of Maryland Noise Ordinances described in my 2014 memo have
not been amended. Accordingly, the maximum allowable noise levels specifically for MPP and
for other property in Howard County remain as stated in that memo. Corrective legislation has
to go through the council review and voting process. Therefore, all corrective legislation is
submitted at once, rather than on a rolling-basis for each correction. No date is currently set for
submitting corrective legislation.
2. Federal Regulations
A. OSHA Regulations
As an initial matter, it should be noted that OSHA governs the relationship between employees
and employers. Therefore, any attempt to enforce OSHA regulations against MPP would need
to be made by MPP employees rather than CA.
There are OSHA regulations (29 CFR § 1910.95 et seq.) to protect employees against the
effects of noise exposure caused by their employer by requiring employers to administer a
hearing conservation program whenever noise exposures equal or exceed an 8-hour average
sound level of 85 decibels. Since noise levels at MPP are allowed to reach 95 decibels between
9:00am and 11:00pm, these OSHA regulations could be called into play (in the event that MPP
1

holds an event over an 8-hour period in which the average sound level exceeds 85 decibels).
However, this does not mean that MPP is prohibited by the OSHA regulation from exceeding 85
decibels. MPP would merely be required to implement a hearing conservation program, that
provides monitoring, and hearing protection devices, training and education programs for
affected employees.
Moreover, because the Howard County Noise Ordinance applicable to the rest of Howard
County is more stringent than OSHA’s sound exposure regulations, the OSHA regulations
would not appear to apply in a meaningful way to noise outside the immediate radius of MPP.
B. EPA Regulations
For some time, the EPA coordinated all federal noise control activities through its Office of
Noise Abatement and Control. However, in 1981, it was decided that noise issues were best
handled at the state or local government level, so the primary responsibility for enacting and
enforcing noise control policy shifted from the EPA to state and local governments. The EPA no
longer enforces any noise control laws and has conceded that it “does not have any regulatory
authority governing noise in local communities.”
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Date: 9/23/14
To:
Columbia Association Board of Directors
Thru: Jane Dembner, Director of Community Building and Open Space
From: Scott Templin, Community Planner
Subject: Howard County Noise Ordinance
Introduction
This summary is in response to a CA Board request on noise regulations in Howard County.
There are two sets of noise ordinances that govern Howard County. One set is written and
regulated by the state of Maryland that is specific to Merriweather Post Pavilion. The other set is
for all other areas of Howard County.
Howard County Noise Ordinance
The Howard County Noise Ordinance is located in the Howard County Code under Section
8.900. Noise standards are defined by decibel level. Section 8.900 references the state’s
COMAR26.02.03.01 to define decibel level as “a unit of measure equal to ten times the
logarithm to the base ten of the ratio of the square of the sound pressure to the square of a
standard reference pressure. For the purpose of this subtitle, 20 micropascals shall be the
standard reference pressure.”
The maximum allowable noise levels by land-use in the Howard County County Code refers to
the state of Maryland’s COMAR 26.02.03.03A (1). However, this section of the Maryland Code
has been repealed and is now referenced in table 1 of COMAR 26.02.03.02. This discrepancy
leaves ambiguity for law enforcement officials about the decibel levels that are permitted, since
the correct code is not referenced. Corrective legislation has been drafted by the Howard
County Council to refer to the new code in COMAR 26.02.03.02 and is anticipated to be filed
early next term. The corrective legislation will take effect 61 days after it is passed and signed to
become effective. Below is the table in COMAR 26.02.03.02 that will be referenced in future
legislation that lists the maximum allowable decibel noise levels for receiving land use
categories:
Day/Night

Industrial

Commercial

Residential

Day

75

67

65

Night

75

62

55

Daytime hours are defined as 7:00am to 10:00pm and nighttime hours are between 10:00pm
and 7:00am. Noise measurements are taken at points on or within the property line of the
receiving property boundary/zoning district. Sound level meters should meet or exceed the
National Standards Institute or successor bodies.
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Many exceptions exist to the noise regulations above that are stated in COMAR 26.02.03.02C
(2), which are listed below:
“(a) Household tools and portable appliances in normal usage during daytime hours;
(b) Lawn care and snow removal equipment (daytime only) when used and maintained in
accordance with the manufacturer's specifications;
(c) Agricultural field machinery when used and maintained in accordance with
manufacturer's specifications;
(d) Blasting operations for demolition, construction, and mining or quarrying (daytime
only);
(e) Motor vehicles on public roads;
(f) Aircraft and related airport operations at airports licensed by the Maryland Aviation
Administration;
(g) Boats on State waters or motor vehicles on State lands under the jurisdiction of the
Department of Natural Resources;
(h) Emergency operations;
(i) Pile driving equipment during the daytime hours of 8 a.m. to 5 p.m.;
(j) Sound except those sounds that are electronically amplified, between 7 a.m. and
midnight, created by:
(i) Sporting events (except trap shooting, skeet shooting, or other target shooting);
(ii) Entertainment events; and
(iii) Other public gatherings operating under permit or permission of the appropriate local
jurisdiction;
(k) Rapid rail transit vehicles and railroads;
(l) Construction and repair work on public property;
(m) Air conditioning or heat pump equipment used to cool or heat housing on residential
property; for this equipment, a person may not cause or permit noise levels which exceed
70 dBA for air conditioning equipment at receiving residential property and 75 dBA for
heat pump equipment at receiving residential property;
(n) Household pets on residential property that are maintained in accordance with local
zoning requirements;
(o) Except in Allegany, Anne Arundel, Baltimore City, Calvert, Charles, Garrett, Howard,
Montgomery, St. Mary's, and Washington Counties, trap shooting, skeet shooting, or
other target shooting between the hours of 9 a.m. and 10 p.m. on any range or other
property of a shooting sports club that is chartered and in operation as of January 1,
2001;
(p) Trash collection operations between the hours of 7 a.m. and 10 p.m.
(q) Marina equipment used to move boats during the period from 7 am to 7 pm provided
that the noise level does not exceed 80 dBA at 20 meters from the equipment.”

State of Maryland Noise Ordinance
In 2013, the Howard County state delegation introduced a bill that was later passed by the
Maryland General Assembly that provided separate noise regulations for Merriweather Post
Pavilion. House Bill 1514 (7) (I) (1) states for any outdoor concert venue with a capacity of over
4

15,000 people, that 95 decibels or lower between 9:00am and 11:00pm, and 55 decibels or
lower between 11:00pm and 11:30pm be permitted within a .25 mile radius of the venue. In
areas outside .25 mile radius of the venue, the decibel levels need to be 72.5 decibels or lower
between 9:00am and 11:00pm, and 55 decibels or lower between 11:00pm and 11:30pm. Note:
electronic amplification at an outdoor concert venue with capacity for more than 15,000 people
is not permitted between 11:30pm and 9:00am.
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HOUSE BILL 1514
L2

3lr0710

By: Howard County Delegation
Introduced and read first time: March 4, 2013
Assigned to: Rules and Executive Nominations
Re–referred to: Environmental Matters, March 13, 2013
Committee Report: Favorable with amendments
House action: Adopted
Read second time: March 20, 2013
CHAPTER ______
1

AN ACT concerning

2

Howard County – Noise Control – Outdoor Concert Venues

3

Ho. Co. 9–13

4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18

FOR the purpose of prohibiting Howard County or a political subdivision of Howard
County from adopting a certain noise control ordinance, rule, or regulation for
an outdoor concert venue with a certain capacity; prohibiting the Department of
the Environment from adopting a certain noise control ordinance, rule, or
regulation that prohibits the electronic amplification of sound between certain
hours at an outdoor concert venue with a certain capacity in Howard County,
subject to certain limitations; prohibiting an outdoor concert venue with a
certain capacity from producing any electronic amplification of sound during a
certain time period, subject to a certain exception; providing that certain noise
control ordinances, rules, or regulations adopted by Howard County in effect on
a certain date do not apply to the electronic amplification of sound at an outdoor
concert venue with a certain capacity in Howard County; and generally relating
to the adoption of sound level limits and noise control ordinances, rules, and
regulations concerning the electronic amplification of sound at an outdoor
concert venue in Howard County.

19
20
21
22

BY repealing and reenacting, with amendments,
Article – Environment
Section 3–105(a) and 3–401(c)
Annotated Code of Maryland
EXPLANATION: CAPITALS INDICATE MATTER ADDED TO EXISTING LAW.
[Brackets] indicate matter deleted from existing law.
Underlining indicates amendments to bill.
Strike out indicates matter stricken from the bill by amendment or deleted from the law by
amendment.

*hb1514*
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HOUSE BILL 1514

1

(2007 Replacement Volume and 2012 Supplement)

2
3
4
5
6

BY repealing and reenacting, without amendments,
Article – Environment
Section 3–105(a) and 3–401(a)
Annotated Code of Maryland
(2007 Replacement Volume and 2012 Supplement)

7
8

SECTION 1. BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF
MARYLAND, That the Laws of Maryland read as follows:

9

Article – Environment

10

3–105.

11
12

(a)
(1)
Except as provided in this section, this title does not limit the
power of a political subdivision to adopt noise control ordinances, rules, or regulations.

13
14
15

(2)
A political subdivision may not adopt any noise control ordinance,
rule, or regulation that is less stringent than the environmental noise standards,
sound level limits, and noise control rules and regulations adopted under this title.

16
17
18
19
20
21

(3)
(i)
A political subdivision may not adopt any noise control
ordinance, rule, or regulation, including the environmental noise standards, sound
level limits, and noise control rules and regulations adopted under this title, that
prohibits trapshooting, skeetshooting, or other target shooting between the hours of 9
a.m. and 10 p.m. by a shooting sports club that is chartered and in operation as of
January 1, 2001.

22
23
24

(ii)
This paragraph does not apply in Baltimore City or
Allegany, Anne Arundel, Calvert, Charles, Garrett, Howard, Montgomery, St. Mary’s,
and Washington counties.

25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32

(4)
(i)
Except as provided in subparagraph (ii) of this paragraph,
Allegany County, Anne Arundel County, Garrett County, Washington County, or a
political subdivision of Allegany County, Anne Arundel County, Garrett County, or
Washington County may not adopt any noise control ordinance, rule, or regulation,
including the environmental noise standards, sound level limits, and noise control
rules and regulations adopted under this title, that prohibits trapshooting,
skeetshooting, or other target shooting between the hours of 9 a.m. and 10 p.m. by a
shooting sports club that is chartered and in operation as of January 1, 2005.

33
34
35
36
37

(ii)
1.
Subject to the provisions of subsubparagraph 2 of this
subparagraph, Allegany County, Anne Arundel County, Garrett County, Washington
County, or a political subdivision of Allegany County, Anne Arundel County, Garrett
County, or Washington County may adopt any noise control ordinance, rule, or
regulation, including the environmental noise standards, sound level limits, and noise
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1
2
3
4
5

3

control rules and regulations adopted under this title, that prohibits trapshooting,
skeetshooting, or other target shooting between the hours of 9 a.m. and 10 p.m. by a
shooting sports club that the responsible political subdivision determines is not in
compliance as of January 1, 2005 with environmental noise standards, sound level
limits, or noise control rules or regulations adopted under this title.

6
7
8
9
10
11

2.

A noise control ordinance, rule, or regulation adopted
under subsubparagraph 1 of this subparagraph shall allow trapshooting,
skeetshooting, and other target shooting between the hours of 9 a.m. and 10 p.m. by a
shooting sports club that the responsible political subdivision determines has become
compliant with environmental noise standards, sound level limits, and noise control
rules and regulations adopted under this title.

12
13
14
15
16

(5)
Carroll County or a political subdivision of Carroll County may not
enforce any noise control ordinance, rule, or regulation, including the environmental
noise standards, sound level limits, and noise control rules and regulations adopted
under this title, against a public school in Carroll County that violates the ordinance,
rule, or regulation between the hours of 8 a.m. and 9:30 p.m.

17
18
19
20
21
22

HOWARD COUNTY OR A POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OF HOWARD
COUNTY MAY NOT ADOPT A NOISE CONTROL ORDINANCE, RULE, OR
REGULATION, INCLUDING THE ENVIRONMENTAL NOISE CONTROL STANDARDS,
SOUND LEVEL LIMITS, AND NOISE CONTROL RULES AND REGULATIONS
ADOPTED UNDER THIS TITLE, FOR AN OUTDOOR CONCERT VENUE WITH A
CAPACITY OF OVER 15,000 INDIVIDUALS.

23

3–401.

24
25
26
27

(a)
Except as otherwise provided by law, the Department shall adopt
environmental noise standards, sound level limits, and noise control rules and
regulations as necessary to protect the public health, the general welfare, and
property.

28
29
30

(c)
(1)
In adopting sound level limits and noise control rules and
regulations, the Department or the political subdivision shall consider, among other
things:

31
32

(6)

(i)

The residential, commercial, or industrial nature of the area

33

(ii)

Zoning;

34

(iii)

The nature and source of various kinds of noise;

35
36

affected;

(iv) The degree of noise reduction that may be attained and
maintained using the best available technology;
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(v)
Accepted
measurement of sound levels; and
(vi)

scientific

and

professional

methods

for

The cost of compliance with the sound level limits.

4
5

(2)
The sound level limits adopted under this subsection shall be
consistent with the environmental noise standards adopted by the Department.

6
7
8
9

(3)
The sound level limits and noise control rules and regulations
adopted under this subsection may not prohibit trapshooting or other target shooting
on any range or other property in Frederick County that the Frederick County
Department of Planning and Zoning has approved as a place for those sporting events.

10
11
12

(4)
The sound level limits and noise control rules and regulations
adopted under this subsection shall be as follows for residential heat pumps and air
conditioning units:

13

(i)

Residential heat pumps 75dba.

14

(ii)

Residential air conditioning units 70dba.

15
16
17
18
19

(5)
(i)
The sound level limits and noise control rules and
regulations adopted under this subsection may not prohibit trapshooting,
skeetshooting, or other target shooting between the hours of 9 a.m. and 10 p.m. on any
range or other property of a shooting sports club that is chartered and in operation as
of January 1, 2001.

20
21
22

(ii)
This paragraph does not apply in Allegany, Anne Arundel,
Baltimore City, Calvert, Charles, Garrett, Howard, Montgomery, St. Mary’s, and
Washington counties.

23
24
25
26
27
28
29

(6)
(i)
Except as provided in subparagraph (ii) of this paragraph,
the Department may not adopt sound level limits and noise control rules and
regulations under this subsection that prohibit trapshooting, skeetshooting, or other
target shooting between the hours of 9 a.m. and 10 p.m. in Allegany County, Anne
Arundel County, Garrett County, or Washington County on any range or other
property of a shooting sports club that is chartered and in operation as of January 1,
2005.

30
31
32
33
34
35

(ii)
1.
Subject to the provisions of subsubparagraph 2 of this
subparagraph, the Department may adopt sound level limits and noise control rules
and regulations under this subsection that prohibit trapshooting, skeetshooting, or
other target shooting between the hours of 9 a.m. and 10 p.m. in Allegany County,
Anne Arundel County, Garrett County, or Washington County on any range or other
property of a shooting club that the Department determines is not in compliance as of
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5

1
2

January 1, 2005 with environmental noise standards, sound level limits, or noise
control rules and regulations adopted under this title.

3
4
5
6
7

2.
A sound level limit or noise control rule or regulation
adopted under this subsection shall allow trapshooting, skeetshooting, and other
target shooting between the hours of 9 a.m. and 10 p.m. by a shooting sports club that
the Department determines has become compliant with sound level limits and noise
control rules and regulations adopted under this title.

8
9
10
11
12

(7) (I)
EXCEPT AS PROVIDED IN SUBPARAGRAPH (II) OF THIS
PARAGRAPH, IN HOWARD COUNTY, THE SOUND LEVEL LIMITS AND NOISE
CONTROL RULES AND REGULATIONS ADOPTED UNDER THIS SUBSECTION MAY
NOT PROHIBIT THE ELECTRONIC AMPLIFICATION OF SOUND AT AN OUTDOOR
CONCERT VENUE WITH A CAPACITY OF OVER 15,000 INDIVIDUALS THAT:

13
14

1.

WITHIN THE AREA THAT IS INCLUDED IN A 0.25
MILE RADIUS OF THE VENUE, PRODUCES SOUND THAT IS:

15
16

P.M.; AND

17
18

P.M.; AND

19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33

A.

95 DBA OR LOWER BETWEEN 9:00 A.M. AND 11:00

B.

55 DBA OR LOWER BETWEEN 11:00 P.M. AND 11:30

2.

WITHIN THE AREA THAT IS OUTSIDE A 0.25 MILE
RADIUS OF THE VENUE, PRODUCES SOUND THAT IS:
A.

72.5 DBA OR LOWER BETWEEN 9:00 A.M. AND

B.

55 DBA OR LOWER BETWEEN 11:00 P.M. AND 11:30

11:00 P.M.; AND
P.M.

(II)

1.
EXCEPT AS PROVIDED IN SUBSUBPARAGRAPH 2
OF THIS SUBPARAGRAPH, AN OUTDOOR CONCERT VENUE WITH A CAPACITY OF
OVER
15,000 INDIVIDUALS MAY NOT PRODUCE ANY ELECTRONIC
AMPLIFICATION OF SOUND BETWEEN 11:30 P.M. AND 9:00 A.M.
2.

THE LIMITATIONS CONCERNING THE ELECTRONIC

AMPLIFICATION OF SOUND AT AN OUTDOOR CONCERT VENUE UNDER
SUBSUBPARAGRAPH 1 OF THIS SUBPARAGRAPH DO NOT APPLY TO AN ACTIVITY
SPONSORED OR AUTHORIZED BY THE HOWARD COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOL
SYSTEM BETWEEN 8:00 A.M. AND 9:00 A.M.
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HOUSE BILL 1514

1
2
3
4
5
6

(III) NOTWITHSTANDING § 3–105(A)(1) AND (2) OF THIS
ARTICLE, THE NOISE CONTROL ORDINANCES, RULES, OR REGULATIONS
ADOPTED BY HOWARD COUNTY AND IN EFFECT ON OCTOBER 1, 2013, DO NOT

7
8

SECTION 2. AND BE IT FURTHER ENACTED, That this Act shall take effect
October 1, 2013.

APPLY TO THE ELECTRONIC AMPLIFICATION OF SOUND AT AN OUTDOOR
CONCERT VENUE IN THE COUNTY WITH A CAPACITY OF OVER 15,000
INDIVIDUALS.

Approved:
________________________________________________________________________________
Governor.
________________________________________________________________________________
Speaker of the House of Delegates.
________________________________________________________________________________
President of the Senate.
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COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS TO BOARD
Date:

July 13, 2015

To:

Columbia Association Board of Directors

From:

Andy Stack, Chair – Planning and Strategy Committee

Subject:

Annual Charge Rate and Cap for the FY 2017 and FY 2018 Budgets

Issue:
At its July 9, 2015 meeting during the Board of Directors meeting, the Planning and Strategy
Committee (PSC) reviewed and discussed the proposed annual charge rate and cap for the FY
2017 budget and FY 2018 conditional budget. The attached memo was the back-up material for
this discussion.
Discussion:
PSC members and other Board members reviewed and discussed the annual charge rate and
cap and the impact of changing them on property owners and CA.
Recommendation of Committee:
By a vote of __2___ For
__0__ Opposed

__0__ Abstain

Has no recommendation.

X

Recommends the following action be taken or motion be approved by the CA Board of
Directors in regards to the issue described above.

Justification for Recommendation:
The discussion was extensive, with PSC and Board members appearing to agree with the
proposed rate and cap while expressing interest in the impact of an increase in the cap.
Motion: The recommendation must be written in the form of a motion or resolution.
The PSC moved to recommend that the Board of Directors approve the proposed annual
charge rate of $0.68 and cap of 2.5% for the FY 2017 and FY 2018 budgets.

Additional Action recommended by committee in lieu of motion or in addition to motion:
None.

July 2, 2015

To:

Members of the Planning and Strategy Committee

From:

Susan Krabbe

CC:

Members of the Columbia Association Board of Directors
Milton W. Matthews, President/CEO

Subject:

Proposed Annual Charge Rate and Cap for FY17 and FY18

Background
The annual charge applies to residential and commercial properties in Columbia, and is currently $0.68
per $100 of assessed valuation, subject to a three-year phase-in and 2.5 percent cap on annual
assessed valuation increases. The maximum allowable rate is $0.75, and the legislated cap is 10
percent. CA has reduced the rate twice; to $0.73 in 1992 and to $0.68 in 2003. CA has also reduced
the cap multiple times since it was mandated in 2003; most recently to 2.5 percent in 2009. The
combination of the cap being below the legislative requirement and the rate at less than the maximum
means that CA foregoes approximately $7 million annually.
CA’s actions are in strong contrast to Howard County’s approach to the real property tax. Howard
County’s cap of 5 percent has not changed since Columbia was founded in 1967. While its rate has
both increased and decreased over this period, the rate has not changed since 2002 (Attachment 2),
when it was changed as a result of a legislated change in methodology.
Annual charge revenue accounts for 53 percent of CA’s revenue. The largest use of that revenue is for
open space maintenance, which includes lake and pond dredging and maintenance; tot lot, pathway
and bridge maintenance; open space mowing, plantings and snow renewal. Annual charge revenue
funds the village community associations; supports the outdoor pools; and funds free community events
such as the Lakefront festivals, international and cultural activities, the Volunteer Center, and the
Columbia Community Exchange, etc. The annual charge also contributes to the CA Points program,
income-qualified discounts to and resident pricing for recreational facilities and programs.
Since the cap was lowered to 2.5 percent in 2009, annual charge revenue has increased about 2.4
percent per year through 2015, but only 1.45 percent in the past three years. Inflation has averaged 1.9
percent from 2009 through 2014. During this time, Columbia residents’ desire for additional services
and programs, as well as maintenance of what has benefitted the community for many years, has not
changed, as evidenced by participation as well as requests for new parks, additional aquatics venues,
and improvements to recreation and fitness facilities, etc.
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Policy Considerations
None.
Legal Considerations
None.
Budget Considerations
The budget implications of the annual charge are significant, as it is more than half the annual revenue
for the organization. Changing the rate by one cent would result in a total difference of approximately
$529,000. As Attachment 1 indicates, the impact on the average residential property is about $14 per
year. The annual charge applies to commercial properties exactly as it applies to residential properties,
so, for example, a one-cent change in the rate would impact General Growth Properties by about
$11,400.
Recommendations
Staff recommends that the Board keep the annual charge rate at $0.68 and the cap at 2.5 percent for
the FY 17 budget. The value CA provides residents and businesses in Columbia, and the economic
impact that CA has in the region at the current rate and cap far exceed the value of a 1.47 percent
decrease in each property owner’s annual charge bill, especially when the average impact on a
resident is $13 for the year, or less than four cents a day.
The Board’s options are to increase the annual charge rate and/or cap, to decrease either or both, or to
keep them unchanged.
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ATTACHMENT 1

Columbia Association, Inc.
Annual Charge Revenue Analysis
July 2, 2015

Sample Properties
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
Average Residential Property

Billable
Valuation

FY 16 Annual
Charge

Annual
Impact of a
$0.01
Change in
the Rate

First Year
Impact of
Reducing the
Cap to 1.5%

$379,999
$363,300
$456,900
$257,617
$520,354
$258,970
$259,949
$235,841
$285,567
$383,043
$271,461

$1,292
$1,235
$1,553
$876
$1,769
$880
$884
$802
$971
$1,302
$923

$19
$18
$23
$13
$26
$13
$13
$12
$14
$19
$14

$13
$0
$0
$9
$17
$9
$9
$8
$0
$13

Howard Hughes Properties

$128,464,060

$436,778

$6,423

$714

General Growth Properties

$227,168,646

$772,373

$11,358

$7,469

$10,576,895,219

$35,961,447

$528,845

$247,000

Total for Columbia Association

Notes:
1. The CA Board members' residential properties were used as a sample representing one from
each village. This also provides transparency regarding the impact of any Board decision on the
annual charge rate. The average impact on the 10 Board members' properties is about $17,
slightly higher than the overall average.
2. The impact of a one-cent increase in the rate over the 26,000 residential properties would be
approximately $14 per year for the average residential property, resulting in $528,800 revenue in
total.
3. The 2.5 percent cap applies to seven of the ten sample properties shown above.
4. A sample of commercial properties was included to show the impact of a one-cent change on
those as well.
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Attachment 2
Columbia Association, Inc.
Various Data Points
As of July 2, 2015

Year
1967
1968
1969
1970
1971
1972
1973
1974
1975
1976
1977
1978
1979
1980
1981
1982
1983
1984
1985
1986
1987
1988
1989
1990
1991
1992
1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015

Annual
Charge Rate
per $100 of
Valuation
$0.75
$0.75
$0.75
$0.75
$0.75
$0.75
$0.75
$0.75
$0.75
$0.75
$0.75
$0.75
$0.75
$0.75
$0.75
$0.75
$0.75
$0.75
$0.75
$0.75
$0.75
$0.75
$0.75
$0.75
$0.75
$0.73
$0.73
$0.73
$0.73
$0.73
$0.73
$0.73
$0.73
$0.73
$0.73
$0.73
$0.73
$0.68
$0.68
$0.68
$0.68
$0.68
$0.68
$0.68
$0.68
$0.68
$0.68
$0.68
$0.68

Howard
County
Howard
Residential
Real
CA Cap on County Cap
Annual
Property
Valuation on Valuation
Charge
Tax Rate
Increases
Increases Revenue (3)
$2.550
0.0%
5.0%
$2.550
0.0%
5.0%
$2.600
0.0%
5.0%
$2.750
0.0%
5.0%
$2.850
0.0%
5.0%
$2.750
0.0%
5.0%
$2.750
0.0%
5.0%
$2.500
0.0%
5.0%
$2.250
0.0%
5.0%
$2.440
0.0%
5.0%
$2.490
0.0%
5.0%
$2.630
0.0%
5.0%
$2.430
0.0%
5.0%
$2.280
0.0%
5.0%
$2.230
0.0%
5.0%
$2.450
0.0%
5.0%
$2.930
0.0%
5.0%
$2.570
0.0%
5.0%
$2.540
0.0%
5.0%
$2.490
0.0%
5.0%
$2.270
0.0%
5.0%
$2.490
0.0%
5.0%
$2.490
0.0%
5.0%
$2.490
0.0%
5.0%
$2.440
0.0%
5.0%
$2.590
0.0%
5.0%
$2.590
0.0%
5.0%
$2.590
0.0%
5.0%
$2.590
0.0%
5.0%
$2.590
0.0%
5.0%
$2.590
0.0%
5.0%
$2.590
0.0%
5.0%
$2.590
0.0%
5.0%
$2.610
0.0%
5.0%
$2.610
0.0%
5.0%
$1.044 (1)
0.0%
5.0%
$1.044
10.0%
5.0% $14,887,286
$1.044
10.0%
5.0% $17,152,963
$1.044
10.0%
5.0% $16,067,119
$1.044
5.0%
5.0% $16,930,634
$1.014
4.0%
5.0% $18,097,414
$1.014
3.0%
5.0% $19,469,730
$1.014
2.5%
5.0% $20,509,639
$1.014
2.5%
5.0% $21,349,043
$1.014
2.5%
5.0% $21,634,800
$1.014
2.5%
5.0% $22,310,500
$1.014
2.5%
5.0% $22,681,300
$1.014
2.5%
5.0% $22,721,400
$1.014
2.5%
5.0% $23,293,000

Commercial
Annual
Charge
Revenue (3)

$8,839,669
$9,354,460
$8,657,854
$9,049,643
$9,708,687
$10,096,438
$10,545,302
$10,713,363
$10,801,200
$11,138,500
$11,323,700
$11,343,600
$11,629,000

User Fee
Income (2)
$1,000
$104,000
$374,000
$478,000
$555,000
$854,000
$1,188,000
$1,491,000
$1,942,000
$2,222,000
$2,485,000
$2,844,000
$3,010,000
$3,680,000
$4,669,000
$5,361,000
$6,101,000
$6,561,000
$7,282,000
$7,999,000
$8,667,000
$8,968,000
$9,771,000
$10,750,000
$11,846,000
$13,276,000
$14,726,000
$15,600,000
$16,553,000
$14,806,000
$18,876,000
$19,433,000
$21,597,000
$23,100,000
$23,306,000
$24,036,000
$23,957,000
$22,986,000
$24,455,000
$25,861,000
$25,746,000
$26,773,000
$27,810,000
$27,400,000
$27,972,000
$28,684,000
$28,794,000
$28,125,000
$29,710,000

CPI, All
Median
Urban
Cumulative Household
Percentage Inflation
Income in
December to Since 1967
Columbia
December
(4)
(5)
3.0%
$16,887
4.7%
0.1%
5.6%
3.3%
3.4%
8.7%
12.3%
6.9%
4.9%
6.7%
9.0%
13.3%
12.5%
8.9%
3.8%
3.8%
3.9%
3.8%
1.1%
4.4%
4.4%
4.6%
6.1%
3.1%
2.9%
2.7%
2.7%
2.5%
3.3%
1.7%
1.6%
2.7%
3.4%
4.6%
2.4%
1.9%
3.3%
3.4%
2.5%
4.1%
0.1%
2.7%
1.5%
3.0%
1.7%
1.5%
597.5%
$100,902
0.8%

Notes:
(1) For Howard County, this was the last year the real property tax was based on 40% of the assessed value. State law changed to 100% in 2002.
(2) The user fee income data include the additional services, programs and facilities that were added, as well as the increase in participation in these
activities.
(3) The annual charge revenue data include increases due to construction of new properties, as well as changes due to the State Department of
Assessments and Taxation's triennial re-assessments. Data shown is what is available in the current accounting system. Previous years' data would
require additional research.
(4) Cumulative inflation was calculated using an online calculator for 1967 to 2013.
(5) This data would have to be researched for each year. We used the one-year estimate for 2013 from the U.S. Census American Community Survey
for median household income for Columbia CDP (census-designated place). Columbia CDP includes non-assessed properties and excludes
Dorsey's Search.
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COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS TO BOARD
Date:

July 13, 2015

To:

Columbia Association Board of Directors

From:

Andy Stack, Chair – Planning and Strategy Committee

Subject:

Increasing the Annual Charge Cap up to 5% for the FY 2017 and FY 2018
Budgets

Issue:
At its July 9, 2015 meeting during the Board of Directors meeting, the Planning and Strategy
Committee (PSC) discussed the idea of raising the annual charge cap from 2.5 percent up to 5
percent. They asked staff to calculate the financial impact of incremental changes in the cap up
to 5 percent.
Discussion:
PSC members and other Board members discussed the annual charge cap and what the
potential impact would be on property owners, CA and the community.
Recommendation of Committee:
By a vote of __2___ For
__0__ Opposed

__0__ Abstain

Has no recommendation.

X

Recommends the following action be taken or motion be approved by the CA Board of
Directors in regards to the issue described above.

Justification for Recommendation:
The PSC and Board members are interested in knowing the financial impact of increasing the
annual charge cap.
Motion: The recommendation must be written in the form of a motion or resolution.
The PSC moved to recommend that the Board of Directors consider raising the annual charge
cap from 2.5 percent up to 5 percent for FY 2017 and FY 2018.

Additional Action recommended by committee in lieu of motion or in addition to motion:
None.

July 16, 2015
To:

Members of the Columbia Association Board of Directors
Milton W. Matthews, President/CEO

From:

Susan Krabbe, Vice President/CFO

Subject:

Financial Impact of Raising the Annual Charge Cap from 2.5% up to 5%

At the July 9, 2015 meeting, the Planning and Strategy Committee members voted to recommend that
the CA Board of Directors consider raising the annual charge cap from 2.5 percent up to 5 percent. This
memo provides the financial impact of incremental increases in the annual charge cap.
As a reminder, the annual charge applies equally to residential and commercial properties, and is
currently $0.68 per $100 of assessed valuation, subject to a three-year phase-in and 2.5 percent cap
on annual assessed valuation increases. The maximum allowable rate is $0.75, and the legislated cap
is 10 percent. CA has reduced the rate twice; to $0.73 in 1992 and to $0.68 in 2003. CA has reduced
the cap multiple times since it was mandated in 2003; most recently to 2.5 percent in 2009.
The future impact of a change in the cap is more challenging to estimate than a change in the rate.
Using the July 2015 billing, we assumed an increase in the cap from 2.5% to each of the increments
noted, also taking into consideration last year's billable value for each property and its phase-in value,
unless the property had transferred, in which case we used the phase-in value. The impacts of the
changes on FY 2016 annual charge revenue are in the chart below. It would be safe to assume that
increasing the cap in FY 2017 would have a similar impact, given the relative stability of the assessable
base over a one-year period.

Commercial
Residential
Total

3%
$35,000
$75,000
$110,000

3.5%
4%
4.5%
5%
$75,000 $115,000 $150,000 $180,000
$155,000 $225,000 $300,000 $370,000
$230,000 $340,000 $450,000 $550,000

If it becomes the Board’s preference to raise the annual charge cap, staff recommends that the
incremental revenue be used to fund additional infrastructure improvements. For example, if the cap
were raised to 5 percent generating an additional $550,000 in annual charge revenue, a very rough
estimate of the additional capital infrastructure improvements that would fund is approximately $2.9
million. The chart below has rough projections for the additional capital funding generated by each
incremental cap increase, based on estimates of the operating expenses such as interest at 4.25
percent, average depreciation over 15 years and overhead incurred for additional capital projects.

Additional capital budget

3%
3.5%
4%
4.5%
5%
$500,000 $1,200,000 $1,800,000 $2,400,000 $2,900,000

Please let me know if you have any questions that we could answer before the July 23
meeting.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS TO BOARD
Date:

July 13, 2015

To:

Columbia Association Board of Directors

From:

Andy Stack, Chair – Planning and Strategy Committee

Subject:

Operating and Capital Parameters for the FY 2017 and FY 2018 Budgets

Issue:
At its July 9, 2015 meeting during the Board of Directors meeting, the Planning and Strategy
Committee (PSC) reviewed and discussed the proposed operating and capital parameters for
the FY 2017 budget and FY 2018 conditional budget. The attached memo was the back-up
material for this discussion.
Discussion:
PSC members and other Board members reviewed and discussed the operating and capital
parameters for both years, how they were developed and how they impact future periods.
Recommendation of Committee:
By a vote of __2___ For
__0__ Opposed

__0__ Abstain

Has no recommendation.

X

Recommends the following action be taken or motion be approved by the CA Board of
Directors in regards to the issue described above.

Justification for Recommendation:
The discussion was extensive, with PSC and Board members appearing to agree with the
proposed operating and capital parameters.
Motion: The recommendation must be written in the form of a motion or resolution.
The PSC moved to recommend that the Board of Directors approve the proposed operating
parameters of an increase in net assets of at least $3.8 million and proposed capital
parameters of $21 million for FY 2017 and $17 million for FY 2018.

Additional Action recommended by committee in lieu of motion or in addition to motion:
None.

July 2, 2015
To:

Members of the Planning and Strategy Committee

From:

Susan Krabbe

CC:

Members of the Columbia Association Board of Directors
Milton W. Matthews, President/CEO

Subject:

Proposed Operating and Capital Budget Parameters for FY17 and FY18

To begin the FY17 and FY18 budget process, we are proposing operating and capital
parameters for consideration by the Planning and Strategy Committee (PSC) and for their
recommendation to the CA Board of Directors. These parameters will be used to develop the
proposed FY17 and conditional FY18 budgets, along with input from the Board, village
associations, community and staff throughout the budget process. This process, which extends
from July 2015 to February 2016, provides numerous opportunities for Board and community
review and input.
Operating Parameters
The FY16 budget projects an increase in net assets of $3.1 million, and the unaudited results for
FY 15 are approximately $6.7 million. Therefore, based on analysis of historical trends and
future indicators, we recommend that the operating parameters (increase in net assets) for each
year be at least $3.8 million. Annual increases in net assets during the two fiscal years of at
least $3.8 million appear to be achievable given the trends in existing programs and services,
and would be adequate for unforeseen expenditures in either one of the fiscal years. The
recommended $3.8 million represents an increase of $1.1 million or 41 percent over the FY 15
and FY 16 budget parameters of $2.7 million.
Our recommendation was analyzed carefully in the context of the actual financial results for FY
15 and prior years, taking into consideration inflation and other potential increases that are
projected to be for both revenue and expenses for the two years. The recommended $3.8
million target for the increase in net assets also takes into consideration a significant increase in
the proposed capital budgets for FY 17 and FY 18 (please see below), as reflected through the
impact of the capital budget on depreciation, interest and other operating expenses.
Capital Parameters
Based on review of the projected capital needs and funding capacity, we recommend the
following capital budget parameters:
Capital Expenditures – FY17
Capital Expenditures – FY18

$21,000,000
$17,000,000
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These amounts are significantly larger than previous years, reflecting concern about CA’s aging
infrastructure and organizational commitments, such as the replacement of SplashDown, facility
assessment survey work planned for the Swim Center and proposed upgrades to the Athletic
Club. The FY 17 parameter includes funding for SplashDown re-construction, indoor tennis
construction, lake dredging maintenance and some improvements at the Athletic Club. The FY
18 parameter includes Swim Center work, two ADA wading pools, improvements at the Athletic
Club and some funding related to the outcomes of the facility surveys planned for completion
through FY 17.
($ in 000's)
Capital budget

2016

$9,900

2015

$12,810

2014

$13,416

2013

$9,164

2012

2011

$9,933 $10,476

2010

$8,877

2009

2008

2007

$9,721 $9,704 $15,070

10-Year
Average
$10,907

Inflation and Interest Rates
The PSC is also responsible for reviewing and recommending to the Board the interest rate and
inflation rate thresholds for the FY18 budget. In February 2017, if there is a difference for either
of these economic factors of one percent or more between the nationally published rates and
the rates noted below, the staff will revise the FY 18 budget without further approval by the
Board of Directors.
We researched inflation and interest projections and developed the following proposed rates:
Thresholds for the FY18 Budget:
Inflation Rate Threshold:
Interest Rate Threshold

2.6%
4.0%

In May 2017, we will issue a summary of all of the FY 18 budget changes approved by the
Board, and changes to the inflation and interest rates, if such changes are made.
Thank you for your leadership in the budget process.
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Independent Auditor's Report
To The Board of Directors
Columbia Association, Inc.
We have audited the accompanying statements of financial position of Columbia Association,
Inc. as of April 30, 2015 and 2014, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for
the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Columbia Association, Inc. as of April 30, 2015 and 2014, and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Baltimore, Maryland
(Date)
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Columbia Association, Inc.
Statements of Financial Position
April 30, 2015 and 2014
(in Thousands)

Assets
2015
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Debt service fund
Risk management fund
Workers' compensation fund
Property, facilities and equipment, net
Intangible assets, net
Deferred bond issuance/financing costs, net
Total assets

2014

$

165
13,124
1,566
6,471
2,866
113,742
319
128

$

201
13,638
2,315
135
6,512
2,689
105,814
319
-

$

138,381

$

131,623

1,229
12,327
14,206

$

27,012
110
11,471
15,119

Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities
Line of credit
Accrued interest
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deferred revenue

$

27,762

53,712

28,860
210

2,702
348

Total term debt

29,070

3,050

Total liabilities

56,832

56,762

81,549

74,861

Term debt
Senior secured bonds
Term loan
Capital lease obligations

Net assets
Unrestricted
Total liabilities and net assets

$

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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138,381

$

131,623

Columbia Association, Inc.
Statements of Activities
Years Ended April 30, 2015 and 2014
(in Thousands)

2015
Revenue
Property assessments
Sport and fitness
Community services
Communication and marketing
Open space and facility services
Village community associations
Interest income and other
Unrealized loss on marketable securities

$

Total revenue
Expenses
Sport and fitness
Community services
Communication and marketing
Open space and facility services
Village community associations
Administrative
Interest
Total expenses
Increase in unrestricted net assets
Unrestricted net assets, beginning
Unrestricted net assets, end

$

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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34,922
25,614
4,096
885
41
(5)
(8)

2014
$

34,065
24,026
4,099
4
949
40
101
(23)

65,545

63,261

27,141
5,347
1,191
11,556
4,434
8,214
974

25,597
5,400
855
11,329
4,489
9,430
832

58,857

57,932

6,688

5,329

74,861

69,532

81,549

$

74,861

Columbia Association, Inc.
Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended April 30, 2015 and 2014
(in Thousands)
2015
Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in unrestricted net assets
Adjustments to reconcile increase in unrestricted net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation expense and amortization
Bad debt expense
Amortization of deferred bond issuance costs
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Unrealized loss on marketable securities
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Accrued interest
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deferred revenue

$

2014

6,688

$

5,329

8,531
406
16
45
8

7,872
316
8
424
23

108
749
(110)
1,603
(913)

(896)
(897)
(288)
(876)
1,746

Net cash provided by operating activities

17,131

12,761

Cash flows from investing activities
Net (sales) purchases of investments held by trustees
Purchase of property, facilities and equipment
Proceeds from the sale of equipment

(9)
(17,361)
110

23
(9,526)
59

(17,260)

(9,444)

(25,783)
(144)

5,578
-

(2,702)
(138)
30,000
(1,140)

(8,671)
(136)
-

Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Line of credit
Bond issuance/finance costs
Long-term debt
Senior secured bonds repayments
Capital lease obligation payments
Term loan proceeds
Term loan principal payments
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

93

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning

(3,229)

(36)

88

201

113

Cash and cash equivalents, end

$

165

$

201

Supplemental disclosure of noncash financing
Fully amortized deferred financing costs written off

$

-

$

8

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Cash paid during the period for interest

$

1,179

$

1,055

See Notes to Financial Statements.
6

Columbia Association, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
April 30, 2015 and 2014
(in Thousands)

Note 1 - Organization and summary of significant accounting policies
Organization
Columbia Association, Inc. (the "Association") is a nonprofit membership corporation,
incorporated under Maryland law. It develops and operates recreation and community
facilities; provides community programs and assistance; and maintains and develops park
land and open space in Columbia, Maryland. The Association is governed by an elevenmember Board of Directors comprised of the Association's President and ten members
elected by residents of each of the ten villages.
Use of estimates in preparing financial statements
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Cash and cash equivalents
The Association defines cash equivalents as all highly liquid investments with maturities of
ninety days or less when acquired, except when such investments are held by trustees for
the debt service, risk management or workers' compensation funds.
Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable consist principally of membership fees receivable, which are
uncollateralized and generally have a term of one to three years. Accounts receivable also
include property assessments, which are collateralized by the resident's property.
The carrying amount of accounts receivable is reduced by a valuation allowance. The
reserve for abatements and allowance for doubtful accounts is based on management's
assessment of the collectability of specific member accounts and the amount of
abatements residents will receive on their property assessment. All accounts or portions
thereof deemed to be uncollectible or to require an excessive collection cost are written off
to the reserves for abatements and allowance for doubtful accounts.
Debt service fund
Under the terms of the senior secured bond agreements, the Association deposits annual
charge revenues with a trustee under a sinking fund arrangement. Investments in this fund
are used to pay principal and interest payments on the bonds and are invested in U.S.
Governmental Securities money market funds, which are stated at fair value.
Investments held by trustees
Investments held by trustees consisting of money market funds and U.S. Government
mortgage bonds and treasuries are stated at fair value.
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Columbia Association, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
April 30, 2015 and 2014
(in Thousands)

Property, facilities and equipment, net
Land includes approximately 3,400 acres of land that has been contributed to the
Association since the establishment of the community of Columbia and is recorded at zero
value. The contributed land is subject to a zoning ordinance limiting its usage to public or
community usage. Facilities, equipment and land improvements that have a limited life are
stated at cost and are depreciated using the straight-line method.
Estimated
Useful Lives

Assets
Building and recreational facilities
Land improvements
Furniture, equipment and other

10 to 40 years
20 to 25 years
5 to 10 years

Costs of parks, lakes and related permanent land improvements are accounted for as land
and are not depreciated because they have an indefinite useful life. Normal, recurring or
periodic repair and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred.
Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets ("FASB ASC 360-10"),
requires that an impairment loss be recognized only if the carrying amount of a long-lived
asset is not recoverable from its undiscounted cash flows and that the measurement of any
impairment loss be the difference between the carrying amount and the fair value of the
asset. There have been no impairment losses recognized during the years ended April 30,
2015 and 2014, respectively.
Intangible assets
Goodwill relates to the purchase of land. The annual assessment revenue levied from this
transaction exceeds the carrying amount of the goodwill and therefore no adjustment to
carrying value is deemed necessary.
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Columbia Association, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
April 30, 2015 and 2014
(in Thousands)

Deferred bond issuance/financing costs
Expenses related to the issuance of the senior secured bonds and the term loan are being
amortized using the effective interest method over the term of the respective debt.
Accumulated amortization as of April 30, 2015 and 2014 was $16 and $-0-, respectively.
Amortization expense for the years ended April 30, 2015 and 2014 was $16 and $5,
respectively. During fiscal year 2014, fully amortized financing costs were written off the
statements of financial position in the amount of $1 with no additional impact to the
statements of activities. Estimated amortization expense for each of the ensuing years
through April 30, 2020 are as follows:
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

$

15
15
14
13
12

Risk management fund
Under the Association's risk management program, self-insured claims for general liability
risks are accrued based on the best estimate of the ultimate cost of both asserted claims
and unasserted claims from reported incidents and estimated losses from unreported
incidents. Such estimates are reviewed by counsel. The Association is funding the risk
management program under a trust fund arrangement, which currently provides for funding
as actuarially determined by independent actuaries.
Workers' compensation fund
The Association has a self-insurance program for workers' compensation. Under this
program, the Association has a workers' compensation fund for its estimate of the ultimate
cost of both asserted and unasserted claims from reported workers' compensation
incidents. Claims and fund expenses are paid directly out of the workers' compensation
fund. The program includes a trust deposit escrow account in the name of Maryland
Workers' Compensation Commission for the benefit of the Association. The investment
level of the fund is periodically reviewed by the State of Maryland Workers' Compensation
Commission and by independent actuaries.
Revenue recognition
Property assessments consist of annual charges for which future services are not required
and are recognized as revenue when the annual charges are levied and due. Membership
and other fees are recognized as revenue on a pro rata basis during the membership
period with unearned fees recorded as deferred revenue.
Rental expense
Rental expense is recognized over the lease terms as it becomes payable according to the
provisions of the respective leases. However, if the rental expense varies from a straightline basis, future rental expense including scheduled and specific rent increase and/or rent
concession are recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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Columbia Association, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
April 30, 2015 and 2014
(in Thousands)

Advertising
The Association uses advertising to promote its programs among the audiences it serves.
The production costs of advertising are expensed as incurred. Advertising and promotion
costs totaled $619 and $649 for the years ended April 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
Income taxes
Although exempt from federal and state income taxes as provided for under Section
501(c)(4) of the Internal Revenue Code, the Association is subject to federal and state
taxes on unrelated business income, if any.
The Association adopted the guidance provided in Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes ("FASB ASC 740-10") on April 1, 2009. Management has determined that the
Association has no material uncertain tax positions that would require recognition under the
guidance. The federal and state income tax returns of the Association are subject to
examination by the IRS and state taxing authorities, generally for three years after they
were filed. Net unrelated business income was $5 and $8 for the years ended April 30,
2015 and 2014, respectively.
Reclassification
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current year
presentation.
Note 2 - Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable are comprised of the following as of April 30, 2015 and 2014:

2015
Membership fees
Annual charges
Other

$

Total accounts receivable
Less reserves for abatements and allowance
for doubtful accounts
$

13,753
726
1,155

2014
$

14,576
962
257

15,634

15,795

2,510

2,157

13,124

$

13,638

Note 3 - Investments and other assets
Debt service fund
Investments of $-0- in 2015 and $135 in 2014 in the Debt Service Fund are held by a
Trustee and consist of a U.S. Governmental Securities Money Market Fund in which the
fair value approximates cost.
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Columbia Association, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
April 30, 2015 and 2014
(in Thousands)

Risk management fund
Investments included in the Risk Management Fund are held by a Trustee and are
combined in a portfolio, which consists of the following as of April 30, 2015 and 2014:
2015
Cost

2014
Fair Value

Cost

Fair Value

Cash and cash equivalents $
Government debt securities

531
5,996

$

531
5,940

$

477
6,087

$

477
6,035

$

6,527

$

6,471

$

6,564

$

6,512

Workers' compensation fund
Investments included in the Workers' Compensation Fund are held by a Trustee in a
portfolio, which consists of the following as of April 30, 2015 and 2014:
2015
Cost

2014
Fair Value

Cost

Fair Value

Cash and cash equivalents $
Government debt securities

98
2,765

$

98
2,768

$

405
2,282

$

405
2,284

$

2,863

$

2,866

$

2,687

$

2,689

Note 4 - Fair value measurements
In determining fair value, the Association uses various valuation approaches within the
FASB ASC 820 fair value measurement framework. Fair value measurements are
determined based on the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an
asset or liability.
FASB ASC 820 establishes a hierarchy for inputs used in measuring fair value that
maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by
requiring that the most observable inputs be used when available. FASB ASC 820 defines
levels within the hierarchy based on the reliability of inputs as follows:


Level 1 - Valuations based on unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities
in active markets;



Level 2 - Valuations based on quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities or identical
assets or liabilities in less active markets, such as dealer or broker markets; and



Level 3 - Valuations derived from valuation techniques in which one or more significant
inputs or significant value drivers are unobservable, such as pricing models,
discounted cash flow models and similar techniques not based on market, exchange,
dealer or broker-traded transactions.
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Columbia Association, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
April 30, 2015 and 2014
(in Thousands)

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for instruments
measured at fair value and their classification in the valuation hierarchy.
Trading and available-for-sale securities
Debt securities consisting of government agency debt obligations are generally valued
at the most recent price of the equivalent quoted yield for such securities, or those of
comparable maturity, quality and type. Debt securities are generally classified within
Level 2 of the valuation hierarchy.
The following table presents assets measured at fair value by classification within the fair
value hierarchy as of April 30, 2015:

Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted Prices
Significant
in Active
Other
Markets for
Observable
Identical Assets
Inputs
(Level 1)
(Level 2)
Government debt securities

$

-

$

8,708

Total
$

8,708

The following table presents assets and liabilities measured at fair value by classification
within the fair value hierarchy as of April 30, 2014:

Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted Prices
Significant
in Active
Other
Markets for
Observable
Identical Assets
Inputs
(Level 1)
(Level 2)
Government debt securities

$

-

12

$

8,319

Total
$

8,319

Columbia Association, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
April 30, 2015 and 2014
(in Thousands)

Note 5 - Property, facilities and equipment, net
Property, facilities and equipment consist of the following as of April 30, 2015 and 2014:

2015
Land
Parks, lakes and related improvements
Land improvements
Buildings and recreation facilities
Furniture, equipment and other
Construction-in-progress

$

Total property, facilities and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation
Property, facilities and equipment, net

6,533
10,400
69,823
103,524
29,046
4,775

2014
$

224,101
110,359
$

113,742

6,533
10,400
65,380
87,451
31,113
10,471
211,348
105,534

$

105,814

Note 6 - Property assessments
The principal source of the Association's revenue is an annual charge, based on a rate (68
cents per $100 of assessed valuation in both fiscal years 2015 and 2014) established
annually by the Board of Directors, on all of Columbia's assessable real property. The
Association's net assessed value is 50% of the State's assessed phased-in cash value
subject to a 10% cap; however, the Board of Directors capped the increase at 2.5% for
fiscal years 2015 and 2014.
The net assessed value for assessment years beginning July 1 was as follows:
2015
2014

$10,279,012
10,077,166

Note 7 - Line of credit
The Association has available an unsecured line of credit with a bank, which, under a loan
agreement, is limited to borrowings of $45,000. The outstanding note bears interest at the
lower of the bank's prime rate or LIBOR plus 55 basis points (0.73% and 0.70% as of April
30, 2015 and 2014, respectively) and is due on demand. Additionally, the note bears an
unused commitment fee of 10 basis points on any difference between the preauthorized
schedule of the projected outstanding balance and the amount of the credit actually used.
The Association had $1,229 and $27,012 outstanding under the line of credit as of April 30,
2015 and 2014, respectively.
The Association had $230 in letters of credit issued through a bank as of April 30, 2015 and
2014, respectively, none of which has been drawn upon.
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Columbia Association, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
April 30, 2015 and 2014
(in Thousands)

Note 8 - Term debt
Senior secured bonds
Senior secured bonds bore interest at annual rates ranging from 6.81% to 11.5%. The
weighted average rate as of April 30, 2014 was 9.82%. Such bonds were secured by
annual charge revenue and they matured in 2015. The balance at April 30, 2015 and 2014
was $-0- and $2,702, respectively.
Under the terms of the bond agreements, annual charge revenues were deposited with a
trustee under a sinking fund arrangement as security for principal and interest payments.
The Association's senior secured bonds were paid off on December 1, 2014.
Term loan
On June 26, 2014, the Association entered into a 15-year fixed rate bank loan with TD
Bank in the amount of $30,000. The loan’s interest rate is 3.63% and matures in fiscal year
2030. The Association is making monthly principal and interest payments beginning in
August 2014 for the term of the loan. The funds were used to refinance certain interim
indebtedness incurred to finance capital improvements. As of April 30, 2015, the future
loan principal payments are as follows:

2016
2017
2018
2019
2020 and thereafter

$

1,567
1,629
1,690
1,753
22,221

Total

$

28,860

Interest expense capitalized was $111 and $8 during the years ended April 30, 2015 and
2014, respectively.
Capital lease obligation
The cost and accumulated amortization of equipment under capital leases were $1,112 and
$835, respectively, as of April 30, 2015, and $1,112 and $724, respectively, as of January
31, 2014. As of April 30, 2015, the future minimum annual payments under capital leases
are as follows:

2016
2017

$

Total minimum lease payments
Less: amount representing interest
Present value of net minimum lease payments

14

142
70
212
(2)

$

210

Columbia Association, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
April 30, 2015 and 2014
(in Thousands)

Note 9 - Retirement benefit plan
Substantially all full-time and eligible part-time employees are covered by a defined
contribution retirement benefit plan. Contributions are based on 6% of eligible employees'
salaries. Previously, employees became fully vested in the plan after seven years of
service. Effective April 1, 2007, employees become fully vested after six years of service.
Expenses under this plan were $884 and $1,084 for the years ended April 30, 2015 and
2014, respectively.
Note 10 - Commitments
The Association leases certain facilities and equipment under operating leases. Rental
expense, exclusive of these costs, was $1,274 and $748 for the years ended April 30, 2015
and 2014, respectively.
As of April 30, 2015, the Association's total commitment for minimum annual rentals,
exclusive of maintenance and other occupancy costs, under noncancellable operating
leases are:

2016
2017
2018
2019
2020 and thereafter

$

871
1,487
1,517
1,547
12,793

Total

$

18,215

The lease for the headquarters building includes a rent abatement for the period
September 1, 2011 to February 28, 2012 valued at $249. Accrued abatements of $18 and
$74 were included in accounts payable and accrued expenses as of April 30, 2015 and
2014, respectively. The lease for the IT offices also includes rent abatement for the period
August 1, 2012 to October 31, 2012 valued at $10. Accrued abatements of $2 and $5 were
included in accounts payable and accrued expenses as of April 30, 2015 and 2014,
respectively. The lease for Haven on the Lake includes rent abatement for the period
September 1, 2014 to August 31, 2015 valued at $386. The lease also includes a tenant
improvement allowance of $1,378. The abatements and allowance are amortized over the
life of the lease and are reflected as a reduction of rent expense as reported in the
statements of activities.
In 2013, the Association committed $1,600 to the Inner Arbor Trust, Inc. On June 18, 2014,
the State of Maryland assigned $190 in general obligation bond proceeds from the
Association to Inner Arbor Trust, Inc. for the design and construction of Symphony Woods
Park. As of April 30, 2015 and 2014, $-0- and $190, respectively, remain unpaid and are
included in accounts payable and accrued expenses in the statements of financial position.
Therefore, $190 was written off and is included in interest and other income on the
statements of activities for the year ended April 30, 2015.
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Columbia Association, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
April 30, 2015 and 2014
(in Thousands)

Note 11 - Postretirement health care
The Association sponsors a defined postretirement medical benefit plan that covers both
salaried and nonsalaried full-time employees and their spouses or surviving spouses. The
postretirement health care plan is contributory. The Association will provide a maximum
contribution of $2.5 to retired employees and their spouses for employees who have 20 or
more years of full-time service with the Association and have passed their 60th birthday.
This contribution will decrease to a maximum of $1.5 when the retiree reaches age 65.
This benefit terminates on the 10th anniversary of the benefit commencement date. The
employee contributes the remainder of the health care cost.
The following table sets forth the funded status of the Association's postretirement health
care benefit plan reconciled to the accrued postretirement benefits cost recognized by the
Association as of April 30 :

2015
Reconciliation of benefit obligations
Obligation at beginning of year
Service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial gain (loss)
Benefit payments
Obligation at end of year

Amount not recognized in net period
postretirement benefit cost:
Unrecognized prior service credit
Unrecognized gain
Total amount recognized in net periodic
postretirement benefit costs
Net periodic postretirement benefit costs
include:
Service cost
Interest cost
Amortization of unrecognized prior
service cost
Net periodic postretirement benefit cost

2014

$

605
25
27
2
(5)

$

571
22
29
(14)
(3)

$

654

$

605

$

(26)
48

$

(27)
48

$

22

$

21

$

25
27

$

22
29

1
$

53

1
$

52

The discount rate was 5.6% as of April 30, 2015 and 2014. The gross trend rate for health
care coverage is 10.0% grading to 4.6% over five years.
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Notes to Financial Statements
April 30, 2015 and 2014
(in Thousands)

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for
the health care plans. A one percent change in assumed health care cost trend rates
would have the following effects:

1% Increase
Effect on total service and interest cost
components of net periodic postretirement
health care benefit cost
Effect on the health care component of the
accumulated postretirement benefit
obligation

$

1% Decrease

8
83

$

(7)
(72)

Note 12 - Significant estimates
Reserve for general liability self-insurance
Under its general liability self-insurance plan, the Association accrues the estimated
expense of general liability claims based on claims filed subsequent to year-end and an
additional amount for incurred, but not yet reported claims based on prior experience.
Accruals for such costs of $1,420 and $1,443 are included in accrued expenses as of April
30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Claim payments based on actual claims ultimately filed
could differ materially from these estimates.
Reserve for workers' compensation self-insurance
Under its workers' compensation self-insurance plan, the Association accrues the
estimated expense of workers' compensation claims based on claims filed subsequent to
year-end and an additional amount for incurred, but not yet reported claims based on prior
experience.

Accruals for such costs of $2,174 and $2,037 are included in accrued expenses as of April
30, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Claim payments based on actual claims ultimately filed
could differ materially from these estimates.
Note 13 - Concentration of credit risk
The Association maintains its cash balance in several accounts in various banks. At times,
these balances may exceed the federal insurance limits; however, the Association has not
experienced any losses with respect to its bank balances in excess of government provided
insurance. Management believes that no significant concentration of credit risk exists with
respect to these cash balances as of April 30, 2015.
Note 14 - Contingencies
The Association is periodically a party to various lawsuits, claims and investigations, both
actual and potential arising in the normal course of business. Based on internal review and
advice of legal counsel, management believes the ultimate outcome of these matters,
individually and in the aggregate, will not have a material adverse effect on the
Association's financial position or results of operations.
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Notes to Financial Statements
April 30, 2015 and 2014
(in Thousands)

Note 15 - Subsequent events
Events that occur after the statement of financial position date but before the financial
statements were available to be issued must be evaluated for recognition or disclosure.
The effects of subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that existed at the
statement of financial position date are recognized in the accompanying financial
statements. Subsequent events which provide evidence about conditions that existed after
the statement of financial position date require disclosure in the accompanying notes.
Management evaluated the activity of the Association through (Date) (the date the financial
statements are available to be issued) and concluded that no subsequent events have
occurred that would require recognition in the financial statements or disclosure in the
notes to the financial statements.
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Trustee and Administrator
Columbia Association, Inc. Incentive Savings Plan and Trust
Report on the Financial Statements
We were engaged to audit the accompanying financial statements of the Columbia
Association, Inc. Incentive Savings Plan and Trust (the "Plan"), which comprise the statement
of net assets available for plan benefits as of December 31, 2014, the related statement of
changes in net assets available for plan benefits for the year then ended, and the related notes
to the financial statements.
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 2014 financial statements based on
conducting the audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Because of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion
paragraph, however, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
provide basis for an audit opinion on the 2014 financial statements.
Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion on the 2014 Financial Statements
As permitted by 29 CFR 2520.103-8 of the Department of Labor's Rules and Regulations for
Reporting and Disclosure under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, the
plan administrator instructed us not to perform, and we did not perform, any auditing
procedures with respect to the information summarized in note 3, which was certified by
Fidelity Management Trust Company (conducting business under the trade name Fidelity
Investments), the trustee of the Plan, except for comparing such information with the related
information included in the financial statements. We have been informed by the plan
administrator that the trustee holds the Plan's investment assets and executes investment
transactions. The plan administrator has obtained a certification from the trustee as of and for
the year ended December 31, 2014, that the information provided to the plan administrator by
the trustee is complete and accurate.

2

Disclaimer of Opinion on the 2014 Financial Statements
Because of the significance of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion on
the 2014 Financial Statements paragraph, we have not been able to obtain sufficient and
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on the 2014 financial
statements. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 2014 financial statements.
Other Matters
The supplemental schedules of assets (held at end of year) as of December 31, 2014 and
delinquent participant contributions as of and for the year ended December 31, 2013, are
required by the Department of Labor's ("DOL") Rules and Regulations for Reporting and
Disclosure under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 and are presented for
the purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements.
Because of the significance of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion
paragraph, we do not express an opinion on these supplemental schedules.
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Columbia Association, Inc.
Incentive Savings Plan and Trust, which comprise the statement of net assets available for
benefits as of December 31, 2013, and in our report dated July 25, 2014, we expressed our
opinion that such financial statement presents fairly, in all material respects, net assets
available for plan benefits as of December 31, 2013, and the changes in net assets available
for plan benefits for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.
Report on Form and Content in Compliance With DOL Rules and Regulations
The form and content of the information included in the financial statements and
supplementary schedules, other than that derived from the information certified by the trustee,
have been audited by us in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, and in our opinion are presented in compliance with the Department
of Labor's Rules and Regulations for Reporting and Disclosure under the Employee
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974.

Baltimore, Maryland
REPORT DATE
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Columbia Association, Inc. Incentive Savings Plan and Trust
Statements of Net Assets Available for Plan Benefits
December 31, 2014 and 2013

2014
Assets
Investments, at fair value
Participant directed investments

$

Total investments, at fair value
Receivables
Employer contributions
Participant notes receivable
Total receivables
Net assets reflective investments at fair value
Adjustment from fair value to contract value for
fully benefit-responsive investment contracts
Net assets available for plan benefits

4

$

30,695,081

31,128,023

30,695,081

1,122,832

11,014
1,104,768

1,122,832

1,115,782

32,250,855

31,810,863

(22,013)
$

See Notes to Financial Statements.

31,128,023

2013

32,228,842

(30,200)
$

31,780,663

Columbia Association, Inc. Incentive Savings Plan and Trust
Statement of Changes in Net Assets Available for Plan Benefits
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Additions
Investment income:
Net appreciation in fair value of investments
Interest and dividend income

$

Total investment income

413,699
1,457,832
1,871,531

Contributions:
Employer
Participants
Rollovers

1,003,984
1,285,803
49,435

Total contributions

2,339,222

Total additions

4,210,753

Deductions:
Benefit payments
Administrative costs and fees

3,758,815
3,759

Total deductions

3,762,574

Net increase in net assets available for plan benefits

448,179

Net assets available for plan benefits, beginning of year
Net assets available for plan benefits, end of year

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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31,780,663
$

32,228,842

Columbia Association, Inc. Incentive Savings Plan and Trust
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2014 and 2013

Note 1 - Plan description
The following description The Columbia Association, Inc. Incentive Savings Plan and Trust
(the "Plan") provides only general information. Participants should refer to the Plan
agreement for a more complete description of the Plan's provisions.
General
The Plan was established on January 1, 1985, and is a defined contribution plan offered to
employees of the Columbia Association, Inc. (the "Association") who meet certain minimum
requirements, including having been employed for at least one year and completing at least
1,000 hours of services within any Plan year.
Effective July 1, 1999, the Plan was amended to reflect its status as a multiple-employer
plan under Code Section 413(c), rather than a single-employer plan, following the
determination that the Association and the nine community associations that participated in
the Plan did not qualify as a single employer under Code Sections 414(b) and (c). The
Association retains exclusive administrative control of the trust and the power to amend the
Plan.
The Plan is subject to the provisions of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of
1974 ("ERISA") and the Internal Revenue Code ("IRC"). The Plan currently offers 36
separate investment options for Plan participants. The Association pays substantially all
administrative expenses of the Plan.
The Association is the administrator of the Plan and Fidelity Management Trust Company
is the trustee for the Plan.
Contributions
The Plan, as amended, requires the Association to contribute 6% of each participant's
compensation and allows the participant to voluntarily contribute up to 100% of their
compensation. In the event of a voluntary contribution of 100% of compensation, approval
of the Association is required. The Plan includes an auto-enrollment provision whereby all
newly eligible employees are automatically enrolled in the Plan unless they affirmatively
elect not to participate in the Plan. Automatically enrolled participants have their deferral
rate set at 3% of eligible compensation and their contributions. Rollovers from other plans
for new employees are also reported as participant contributions. Contributions are subject
to certain IRC limitations.
Participant accounts
Each participant's account is credited with the participant's contribution and allocations of
the Association's contribution and Plan earnings. Allocations are based on participant
earnings or account balances, as defined. The benefit to which a participant is entitled is
limited to the benefit that can be provided from the participant's vested account.
Vesting
For participants with three or more years of service as of June 30, 1993, the 6%
Association contribution was 100% vested immediately. For participants hired on or after
6

Columbia Association, Inc. Incentive Savings Plan and Trust
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2014 and 2013

July 1, 1993 and for contributions of all participants made through December 31, 2006, the
Association's contribution is vested as participants complete at least 1,000 hours of service
within any Plan year as follows:
Years of vesting service
Less than 3
3
4
5
6
7 or more

Percentage
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%
100%

On January 1, 2007, Columbia Association accelerated the vesting rate that the
Association contributes to each participant's account. The new vesting schedule increases
the percentage of the benefit that becomes vested each year, and shortens the overall time
it takes to become 100% vested. The new vesting schedule applies only to contributions
made after January 1, 2007.
Years of vesting service
1
3
4
5
6

Percentage
60%
70%
80%
90%
100%

Participants immediately vest 100% in their voluntary contributions and related investment
earnings. Forfeited contributions are used to reduce future Association contributions.
Payment of benefits
On termination of service due to death, disability or retirement, a participant may elect to
receive either a lump sum distribution amount equal to the value of the participant's vested
interest in his or her account, or annual installments over a five-year period. For
termination of service due to other reasons, a participant may receive the value of the
vested interest in his or her account as a lump sum distribution. Participants can take an inservice withdrawal if they meet the requirements of the Plan.
Effective on March 8, 2013, the Plan was amended and accounts of participants who are
no longer contributing to the Plan with an account balance of less than $1,000 will receive
an automatic distribution.
Forfeited accounts
Forfeited balances of terminated participants' nonvested accounts are used to reduce
future employer contributions to the Plan. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, unallocated
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December 31, 2014 and 2013

forfeitures were $49,263 and $113,783, respectively. In 2014, employer contributions were
reduced by $165,127 from forfeited nonvested accounts.
Participant notes receivable
Participants may borrow from their fund accounts up to a maximum equal to the lesser of
$50,000 or 50% of the vested portion of their account balance. Principal, plus interest fixed
on the date of borrowing, is payable in equal installments through payroll deductions over a
term not to exceed five years. However, if the loan is used to acquire a principal residence,
the loan can be repaid over a reasonable period of time not to exceed 30 years. The loans
are collateralized by the participant's account and bear interest at a rate commensurate
with local prevailing rates as determined quarterly by the Plan administrator. Interest rates
range from 3.25% to 5.25%.
Note 2 - Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of accounting
The financial statements of the Plan are prepared under the accrual method of accounting
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America ("GAAP").
Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires Plan
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.
Risks and uncertainties
The Plan invests in various investment securities. Investment securities are exposed to
various risks, such as interest, market, and credit risks. Due to the level of risk associated
with certain investment securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes could
materially affect the amounts reported in the statements of net assets available for Plan
benefits.
Investment valuation and income recognition
Shares of registered investment companies (mutual funds and money market funds) are
valued at quoted prices, which represent the net asset value of shares held by the Plan at
year-end. Common collective trusts are investment vehicles valued using the net asset
value provided by the administrator of the fund. The net asset value is based on the value
of the underlying assets owned by the fund, minus its liabilities, and then divided by the
number of shares outstanding.

8

Columbia Association, Inc. Incentive Savings Plan and Trust
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2014 and 2013

Investments in common collective trust funds consist of the Fidelity Managed Income
Portfolio Fund. As prescribed by GAAP, investment contracts held by a defined
contributions plan are required to be reported at fair value. However, contract value is the
relevant measurement attribute for that portion of the net assets available for benefits of a
defined contribution plan attributable to fully benefit-responsive investment contracts
because contract value is the amount participants would receive if they were to initiate
permitted transactions under the terms of the Plan. As required by GAAP, the statements
of net assets available for benefits present the fair value of the investment contracts as well
as the adjustment of the fully benefit-responsive investment contracts from fair value to
contract value. The statement of changes in net assets available for benefits is prepared
on a contract value basis. The crediting rate for these investment contracts is reset
monthly by the issuer. The crediting rate was 1.64% and 3.0% at December 31, 2014 and
2013, respectively.
Interest income is recorded on the accrual basis. The Plan presents, in the statement of
changes in net assets available for benefits, the net appreciation (depreciation) in the fair
value of its investments which consists of the realized gains or losses, the unrealized
appreciation (depreciation) on those investments, and reinvested dividends. All net
appreciation (depreciation) in fair value of investments relates to the investments in mutual
funds. Purchases and sales of securities are recorded on a trade-date basis. Dividends are
recorded on the ex-dividend date.
Participant notes receivable
Participant notes are measured at their unpaid principal balances plus any accrued but
unpaid interest. Delinquent participant notes are reclassified as distributions based upon
the terms of the Plan document. No allowance for credit losses has been recorded as of
December 31, 2014 or December 31, 2013. If a participant ceases to make loan
repayments and the plan administrator deems the participant loan to be in default, the
participant loan balance is reduced and a benefit payment is recorded.
Payment of benefits
Benefits are recorded when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the Plan.
Administrative expenses
Substantially all of the expenses of administering the Plan are paid by the Association.
Income taxes
The Plan obtained a determination letter dated September 13, 2013, in which the Internal
Revenue Service stated that the Plan documents were in compliance with the applicable
requirements of the IRC. Although the Plan has been amended since receiving the
determination letter, the plan administration and the Plan's tax counsel believe that the Plan
is designed, and is currently being operated, in compliance with the applicable
requirements of the IRC and, therefore, believe that the Plan is qualified and exempt from
income taxes.
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GAAP requires plan management to evaluate tax positions taken by the Plan and
recognize a tax liability if the Plan has taken an uncertain position that more likely than not
would not be sustained upon examination by the Internal Revenue Service. The Plan is
subject to routine audits by taxing jurisdictions. However, there are currently no audits for
any tax periods in progress. The Plan administrator believes it is no longer subject to
income tax examinations for years prior to 2011.
Subsequent events
The Plan has evaluated subsequent events through REPORT DATE, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.
Note 3 - Certified investments (unaudited)
The plan administrator has elected the method of compliance permitted by 29 CFR
2520.103-8 of the Department of Labor's Rules and Regulations for Reporting under
ERISA. Investments held at December 31, 2014 and investment income for the year then
ended, that is disclosed in the accompanying financial statements and supplemental
schedule was obtained or derived from information supplied to the plan administrator and
certified as complete and accurate by the trustee of the Plan.
Note 4 - Investments
Participants may elect to invest in any of 36 fund options.
The following are investments that represent 5% or more of the Plan's net assets as of
December 31:
2014
Fidelity Retirement Money Market
Fidelity Growth Company Fund
Fidelity Freedom 2020
Fidelity Spartan 500 Index Fund
PIMCO Total Return Admin Fund
Fidelity Freedom 2025
Fidelity Managed Income Portfolio Fund
Fidelity Balanced Fund

$

3,043,515
2,091,146
1,904,721
1,871,706
1,719,752
1,664,626
*
*

2013
$

3,336,263
1,767,611
1,965,782
**
2,274,265
**
2,003,605
1,907,341

* Investment represents less than 5% of fair value of the Plan's net assets as of December
31, 2014.
** Investment represents less than 5% of fair value of the Plan's net assets as of
December 31, 2013.
During the Plan year ended December 31, 2014, the Plan's investments (including gains
and losses on investments bought and sold, as well as held during the year) appreciated in
value by $413,699.
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Note 5 - Fair value measurements
The accounting guidance for fair value measurements and disclosures clarifies the principle
that fair value should be based on the assumption that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, and establishes a hierarchy. The hierarchy gives the highest
priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level
1) and the lowest priority for unobservable inputs (level 3). The three levels of the fair value
hierarchy under FASB ASC 820 are described as follows:
Level 1 - Observable inputs such as quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability
either directly or indirectly. These include quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities in active markets and quoted prices for identical or similar assets or
liabilities in markets that are not active; or
Level 3 - Unobservable inputs that reflect the reporting entity's own assumptions.
The asset or liability's fair value measurement within the fair value hierarchy is based on
the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation
techniques maximize the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs.
Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair
value. There have been no changes in the methodologies used at December 31, 2014 and
2013.
Mutual funds: Valued at the daily closing price as reported by the fund. Mutual funds
held by the Plan are open-end mutual funds that are registered with the Securities and
Exchange Commission. These funds are required to publish their daily net asset value
("NAV") and to transact at that price. The mutual funds held by the Plan are deemed to
be actively traded.
Collective trust fund: Valued at the NAV of units of a bank collective trust. The NAV, as
provided by the trustee, is used as a practical expedient to estimate fair value. The NAV
is based on the fair value of the underlying investments held by the fund less its
liabilities. This practical expedient is not used when it is determined to be probable that
the fund will sell the investment for an amount different than the reported NAV.
Participant transactions (purchases and sales) may occur daily. Were the Plan to initiate
a full redemption of the collective trust, the investment adviser reserves the right to
temporarily delay withdrawal from the trust in order to ensure that securities liquidations
will be carried out in an orderly business manner.
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The following tables set forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Plan's certified
investments at fair value as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
2014
Level 2

Level 1
Money market fund
Mutual funds:
Balanced
Bond
Dividend
Emerging market
Growth
International
Lifecycle
Real estate
Stock index
Value
Common collective trust
Total investments
measured at fair value

$

3,043,515

$

1,708,896
2,487,496
473,852
359,223
5,843,354
1,390,698
9,777,813
898,844
2,146,252
1,492,053
-

$

29,621,996

Total investments
measured at fair value

$

3,336,263

$

28,691,476

$

1,506,027

$

-

$

12

$

-

-

$

2,003,605

$

31,128,023

Total
-

$

-

$

3,043,515
1,708,896
2,487,496
473,852
359,223
5,843,354
1,390,698
9,777,813
898,844
2,146,252
1,492,053
1,506,027

Level 3

2,003,605

$

Total

-

2013
Level 2

1,907,341
3,196,515
475,404
419,073
5,202,896
1,675,456
8,930,032
702,717
1,415,031
1,430,748
-

$

1,506,027

Level 1
Money market fund
Mutual funds:
Balanced
Bond
Dividend
Emerging market
Growth
International
Lifecycle
Real estate
Stock index
Value
Common collective trust

Level 3

-

3,336,263
1,907,341
3,196,515
475,404
419,073
5,202,896
1,675,456
8,930,032
702,717
1,415,031
1,430,748
2,003,605

$

30,695,081

Columbia Association, Inc. Incentive Savings Plan and Trust
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2014 and 2013

Note 6 - Related parties
Certain Plan investments are shares of mutual funds managed by Fidelity Investments
("Fidelity") for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013. Fidelity was the trustee and
custodian of the Plan during the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 and, therefore,
these transactions qualify as party-in-interest. Fees paid to Fidelity by the Plan for custodial
services amounted to $3,759 and $3,511 for the years ended December 31, 2014 and
2013, respectively.
Note 7 - Plan termination
Although it has not expressed any intent to do so, the Association has the right under the
Plan to discontinue its contributions at any time and to terminate the Plan subject to the
provisions of ERISA. In the event of Plan termination, participants will become 100%
vested in their entire accounts.
Note 8 - Reconciliation to Form 5500
The following represents a reconciliation of the difference between the statements of net
assets available for plan benefits per the financial statements and the statement of net
assets available for plan benefits per the Form 5500 as of December 31, 2014:
Net assets available for plan benefits per financial statements

$

Add adjustment from contract value to fair value
Net assets available for plan benefits per Form 5500

32,228,842
22,013

$

32,250,855

The following represents a reconciliation of the difference between the statement of
changes in net assets available for plan benefits per the financial statements and the
statement of changes in net assets available for plan benefits per Form 5500 for the year
ended December 31, 2014:
Net increase in net assets available for plan benefits per
financial statements

$

448,179

Less change in adjustment from contract value to fair value

(8,187)

Add contributions receivable - employer at December 31, 2013

11,014

Add net loan default payments at December 31, 2013
Net increase in net assets available for plan benefits per
Form 5500
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3,306

$

454,312

Columbia Association, Inc. Incentive Savings Plan and Trust
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2014 and 2013

Note 9 - Delinquent participant contributions
Department of Labor ("DOL") regulations require that participant contributions be remitted
as soon as they can be segregated from the sponsor's assets, but in no instance later than
the fifteenth business day of the month following the month of the contribution. During the
year ended December 31, 2013, the Plan's sponsor identified contributions of $626, that
were not remitted to the Plan in accordance with the regulations. Additionally, management
performed a calculation of lost earnings and interest on late participants' contributions
which totaled $7 for the year ended December 31, 2013. During 2014, the identified
contributions and lost earnings related to the year ended December 31, 2013 were
contributed to the Plan.
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Columbia Association, Inc. Incentive Savings Plan and Trust
Schedule H, Line 4i
Schedule of Assets (Held at End of Year)
52-0823992, Plan 003
December 31, 2014
(a)

Party-inInterest
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*
*

(b)

(c)

(e)

Lessor or Similar Party,
Identity of Issuer, Borrower

Description of
Investment Including
Maturity Date, Rate
of Interest, Collateral,
Par or Maturity Value

Current Value

Fidelity Managed Income Portfolio Fund**
Fidelity Government Income Fund
Fidelity Balanced Fund
Fidelity Diversified International Fund
Fidelity Freedom 2005 Fund
Fidelity Freedom 2010 Fund
Fidelity Freedom 2015 Fund
Fidelity Freedom 2020 Fund
Fidelity Freedom 2025 Fund
Fidelity Freedom 2030 Fund
Fidelity Freedom 2035 Fund
Fidelity Freedom 2040 Fund
Fidelity Freedom 2045 Fund
Fidelity Freedom 2050 Fund
Fidelity Freedom Income Fund
Fidelity Growth Company Fund
Fidelity Real Estate Investment Portfolio
Fidelity Retirement Money Market
Fidelity Spartan 500 Index Fund
Fidelity Spartan Extended Index Fund Investor Class
Fidelity Spartan Long-Term TR IDX ADV
Fidelity Spartan Global ex US Index Advantage Class
ABF Small Cap Val Inv
Allianz NJF Dividend Value Admin Fund
Baird Mid Cap Inv
Baron Growth Fund
Columbia Dividend Income A
DFA INF PRT SEC PORT
Harbor Intl Inst
Invesco Developing Markets A
Janus Triton T
Loomis Core PL BD Y
Parnassus Fund
PIMCO Total Return Admin Fund
Ridgeworth Mid-Cap Value Equity I Fund
TRP Div Growth

Common Collective Trust
Mutual Fund
Mutual Fund
Mutual Fund
Mutual Fund
Mutual Fund
Mutual Fund
Mutual Fund
Mutual Fund
Mutual Fund
Mutual Fund
Mutual Fund
Mutual Fund
Mutual Fund
Mutual Fund
Mutual Fund
Mutual Fund
Money Market
Mutual Fund
Mutual Fund
Mutual Fund
Mutual Fund
Mutual Fund
Mutual Fund
Mutual Fund
Mutual Fund
Mutual Fund
Mutual Fund
Mutual Fund
Mutual Fund
Mutual Fund
Mutual Fund
Mutual Fund
Mutual Fund
Mutual Fund
Mutual Fund

$

Total investments at fair value
*

1,506,027
751,338
1,358,952
1,055,561
73,727
397,908
969,741
1,904,721
1,664,626
1,437,711
718,142
1,178,279
555,547
826,300
51,111
2,091,146
898,844
3,043,515
1,871,706
274,546
128,894
193
793,903
239,668
988,096
1,318,188
473,852
16,406
334,944
359,223
611,704
221,050
93,997
1,719,752
458,482
740,223
31,128,023

Participant loans

3.25% - 5.25%

1,122,832

Adjustment from fair value to contract value for
fully benefit-responsive investment contracts

(22,013)

Total assets (held at end of year)

$

* Party-in-interest
** Fair value with adjustment to contract value below

See Independent Auditor's Report.
16

32,228,842

Columbia Association, Inc. Incentive Savings Plan and Trust
Schedule H, Line 4a
Schedule of Delinquent Participant Contributions
52-0823992, Plan 003
December 31, 2013

Year
2013

Total that Constitutes Nonexempt Prohibited
Contributions
Participant
Contributions
Pending
Contributions
Correction in
Transferred Late to Contributions Not Corrected Outside
Corrected
the VFCP
the VFCP
Plan
$
626

See Independent Auditor's Report.
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Total Fully
Corrected Under
VFCP and PTE
2002-51
$
626

Board Request Tracking Log
FY 16
As of July 17, 2015
A

B

C

D

Issue/Task Description

Origination
Date

Assigned To
(Department)

F

G

Due Date

Closed Date

Estimated
Hours

5/1/2015

General Counsel

5/29/2015

5/13/2015

3

Can we get good numbers on
exactly how many people have
taken advantage of our senior
discount for gym memberships
since the inception of the senior
Gregg Schwind discount 2-3 years ago?

4/23/2015

Communications &
Marketing

6/23/2015

6/23/2015

4

How many Haven members are
65+? Why is there no reference
to the senior discount on the
Haven site or in the Haven
Gregg Schwind membership materials?

4/23/2015

Communications &
Marketing

6/23/2015

6/23/2015

5

How are we marketing our
senior discount to older adults?
Why is there no reference to the
senior discount on the CA
Gregg Schwind website?

4/23/2015

Communications &
Marketing

6/23/2015

6/23/2015

6

Can we get numbers on Older
Adult gym and pool
memberships (single facility and
PP and pools only) for the past
year or several years to see if
there is a trend (i.e., are we
gaining or losing older adults in
Gregg Schwind our fitness facilities and pools)?

4/23/2015

Communications &
Marketing

6/23/2015

6/23/2015

1

2

Originator

Alan Klein

Would it be possible for you to
prepare a summary of the
specific bills which CA lobbied
about and their disposition?

1

E

Board Request Tracking Log
FY 16
As of July 17, 2015
A
1

Originator

B

C

D

Issue/Task Description

Origination
Date

Assigned To
(Department)

4/7/2015

Chief Financial
Officer

What is the specific amount of
insurance that CA carries for the
IAT property? What does it cost
annually? What specifically does
it cover? Does it cover the
liability for public events such as
Wine in the Woods that ar held
on the property? What, if any,
obligation does IAT have for
insuring the property and who
Reg Avery (on legally authorizes the outside
behalf of Barbara events like Wine in the WoodsIAT or CA?
7 Russell)

2

E

F

G

Due Date

Closed Date

Estimated
Hours

5/7/2015

5/13/2015

Resident Request Tracking Log
FY 16
As of July 17, 2015
A

1

2

3

Originator

B

Issue/Task Description

Does CA continue to distinguish
between Board members and
CA employees in the tax
reporting of Package Plan
memberships and, if so, the
Tom and Ginger rationale behind that
distinction.
Scott
What document or policy, if
any, provides for the President
to preside at Members Meetings
when Section 4.02 of the Bylaws
gives this responsibility to the
Chairperson of the Board, and
Section 4.03 gives this
responsibility to the ViceChairperson in the absence of
the Chairperson and Section
4.04 does not specifically give
this responsibility to the
Joel Hurewitz President?

C

D

E

F

Origination
Date

Assigned To
(Department)

Due Date

Closed Date

5/3/2015

Chief Financial
Officer

6/3/2015

5/8/2015

4/9/2015

General Counsel

6/1/2015

5/27/2015

1

G

Estimated
Hours

1.00

Resident Request Tracking Log
FY 16
As of July 17, 2015
A

B

Originator

4

Issue/Task Description
What document or policy, if
any, provides for an annual
organizational meeting, separate
and distinct from the Members
Meeting, of the Columbia
Council when SEVENTH (1) of
the Charter states that "The
members of the Corporation
Joel Hurewitz shall be the Columbia Council

5

What document or policy, if
any, provides for the election of
a Chair and Vice-Chair of the
Columbia Council separate and
distinct from the Chairperson
and Vice-Chairperson of the
Joel Hurewitz Board of Directors?

1

C

D

E

F

G

Origination
Date

Assigned To
(Department)

Due Date

Closed Date

Estimated
Hours

4/9/2015

General Counsel

6/1/2015

5/27/2015

1.00

4/9/2015

General Counsel

6/1/2015

5/27/2015

1.00

2

Resident Request Tracking Log
FY 16
As of July 17, 2015
A

1

6

Originator

B

Issue/Task Description

What document or policy, if
any, provides for the backdating
of the appointment of Members
and Board of Directors
especially in light of the
amendments to SEVENTH (3)
of the Charter which provides
that "Each member and director
so elected shall serve as such
until the end of his/her term as
Columbia Council
Representative or until his or
her successor is duly elected and
qualifies, whichever is later"
with the May organizational
meeting being later than the
election of the Council
Joel Hurewitz Representative?

C

D

E

F

G

Origination
Date

Assigned To
(Department)

Due Date

Closed Date

Estimated
Hours

4/9/2015

General Counsel

6/1/2015

5/27/2015

1.00

3

Resident Request Tracking Log
FY 16
As of July 17, 2015
A

1

7

Originator

B

Issue/Task Description

What document or policy, if
any, provides for the backdating
of the appointment of the
Executive Officers when Section
4.01 of the Bylaws provides that
"Each such officer shall hold
office until the first meeting of
the Board of Directors after the
annual meeting of members next
succeeding his or her election,
and until his or her successor
shall have been duly chosen and
Joel Hurewitz qualified"?

C

D

E

F

G

Origination
Date

Assigned To
(Department)

Due Date

Closed Date

Estimated
Hours

4/9/2015

General Counsel

6/1/2015

5/27/2015

1.00

4

